UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016
Commission File Number 333-212315

H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Nevada
(State or other jurisdiction
of incorporation or organization)
97 River Road
Flemington, New Jersey
(Address of principal executive office)

47-4823945
(IRS Employer
Identification No.)

08822
(Zip Code)

(908) 837-9097
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined by Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes ☐ No ☒
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Act. Yes ☐ No ☒
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the
past 90 days. Yes ☒ No ☐
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 229.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes ☒ No ☐
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K. ☒
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer ☐
Non-accelerated filer ☐
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Accelerated filer ☐
Smaller reporting company ☒

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes ☐ No ☒
There was no aggregate market value of the voting common stock held by non-affiliates as of June 30, 2016, as our common stock was not publicly traded at that
time.
As of March 22, 2017, there were 6,941,579 shares of registrant’s common stock outstanding.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
PART I
Item 1.
Item 1A.
Item 1B.
Item 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.

Business
Risk Factors
Unresolved Staff Comments
Properties
Legal Proceedings
Mine Safety Disclosures

3
10
18
19
19
19

PART II
Item 5.
Item 6.
Item 7.
Item 7A.
Item 8.
Item 9.
Item 9A.
Item 9B.

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Selected Financial Data
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures
Controls and Procedures
Other Information

20
20
21
25
F-1 – F-13
26
26
27

PART III
Item 10.
Item 11.
Item 12.
Item 13.
Item 14.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Executive Compensation
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Principal Accounting Fees and Services

28
30
32
33
33

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

34

Signatures

36

PART IV
Item 15.

2

PART I
ITEM 1 - BUSINESS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K (including the section regarding Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations) contains forward-looking statements regarding our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Words such as “expects,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates” and similar expressions or variations of such words are intended to identify forward-looking
statements, but are not deemed to represent an all-inclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements as denoted in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Additionally, statements concerning future matters are forward-looking statements.
Although forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K reflect the good faith judgment of our Management, such statements can only
be based on facts and factors currently known by us. Consequently, forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties and actual results
and outcomes may differ materially from the results and outcomes discussed in or anticipated by the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or
contribute to such differences in results and outcomes include, without limitation, those specifically addressed under the heading “Risks Factors” below, as well as
those discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Readers are urged not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak
only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). You can read and copy any
materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. You can obtain additional information about the
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet site (www.sec.gov) that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, including us.
We undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements in order to reflect any event or circumstance that may arise after the date
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Readers are urged to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made throughout the entirety of this annual
Report, which attempt to advise interested parties of the risks and factors that may affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
Overview
The Company was formed in August 2015 to expand upon the successful implementation of a solar hydrogen energy system used to completely power a
residence or commercial property with clean energy so that it can run independent of the utility grid and also provide energy to the utility grid for monetary credits.
This unique system uses renewal energy as its source for hydrogen production. We believe that it is a revolutionary green-energy concept that is safe, renewable,
self-sustaining and cost effective. The hydrogen house concept began as a non-profit organization, The Hydrogen House Project, which was founded by Michael
Strizki, our Chief Technology Officer. The organization successfully completed four hydrogen house projects, and we are now making the technology available to
the general public.
Market Potential
According to the International Energy Agency, renewable energy will represent the largest single source of electricity growth over the next five years.
During that time, the share of renewable energy in global power generation will rise to over 26% by 2020 from 22% in 2013. By 2020, the amount of global
electricity generation coming from renewable energy will be higher than today’s combined electricity demand of China, India and Brazil. This rapid growth in the
use of renewable energy is led by continued expansion in renewable energy technology, the need to lessen dependency on fossil fuel energy, grid-based
vulnerabilities and the battle against global warming. According to the U.S. Energy Information Administration, renewable sources of energy accounted for about
10% of total U.S. energy consumption and 13% of electricity generation in 2014. In 2014, approximately $34 billion was spent on renewable energy production in
the U.S. alone.
As we are one of the first providers of a hydrogen energy system for residential housing, we are creating this new market within the renewable energy
sector. As a result, there is no expectation or basis for any projections of the future of this market. Since the market did not exist previously, there can only be
growth, not a decline, and we are, through the use of these statistics, showing that there is a significant market opportunity for hydrogen energy in the renewable
energy sector. While the statistics show that there is expected to be a significant growth in renewable energy market, we cannot provide any assurances as to how
much, if any, of this market, we will be able to capture.
Technology Overview
There are great benefits to hydrogen energy. The use of hydrogen as a fuel produces no carbon dioxide or other greenhouse gases. Unlike fossil fuels, the
only emissions from hydrogen fuel are chemically pure water and oxygen. Hydrogen can be extracted from water using renewable energy from the sun and unlike
batteries, hydrogen energy can be stored indefinitely. There is no drilling, fracking or mining required to produce hydrogen energy. We believe it is safe and
efficient, and the cleanest energy source on the planet.
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In the past, there have been significant obstacles to commercializing hydrogen energy. The most significant being the need to reduce the cost of the
production of hydrogen. No matter how productive an energy source may be, it will not be widely adopted if it is prohibitively expensive. As shown in the chart
below, the cost of technology required to convert hydrogen gas to electricity has come down significantly over the last 10 years. As technology advances, the cost
will continue to decline, making hydrogen energy more affordable.
Decline in Cost of Technology for a Standard System between 2006 and 2016
Component
Hydrogen Generator
Fuel Cell
Solar Panels (40 275 watt panels)
TOTAL:

Cost in 2006
$
$
$
$

25,000
22,000
44,000 ($4.00 per watt)
91,000

Cost in 2016
$
$
$
$

9,000
7,000
7,700 ($0.70 per watt)
23,700

Cost Savings
$
$
$
$

16,000
15,000
36,300
67,300

In addition to the cost, another challenge involves obtaining zoning and permits to install the system. Each local and state municipality needs to approve
the installation. There are no special licenses or permits that are required for a client to store hydrogen on their property. The only permits that are required in
connection with a hydrogen energy system are the basic building permits that are required by each town/city/municipality or county in connection with home
improvement projects. In connection with the permitting process, we must adhere to safety guidelines involving the safe installation of hydrogen, which are the (i)
Occupational Safety and Health Administration’s standards for the storage or delivery of hydrogen gas, and (ii) National Renewable Energy Laboratory’s
stationary and portable fuel cells systems codes and standards. We have obtained all zoning and licensing permits for its prior installations, and we believe that
such existing documentation will be used for future approvals.
As well, for many people, hydrogen is a new form of energy that needs to be explained and documented, so we need to educate potential customers and
overcome any resistance to adoption of new technology. There is also a misperception about hydrogen gas and its storage. There are no additional safety concerns
when it comes to the storage of hydrogen gas, as it is similar to storing propane, another gas that is flammable but is in wide use and actively stored in tanks. As
more installations are completed, we believe these challenges will become less restrictive.
The HC-1 System
We have succeeded in developing a hydrogen energy system designed to create electricity that is generated by renewable solar energy. We call the solar
hydrogen energy system the HC-1. The HC-1 system functions as a self-sustaining renewable energy system. It can be configured as an off grid solution for all
your electricity needs or it can be connected to the grid to generate energy credits. Its production of hydrogen is truly eco-friendly, as it is not produced by the use
of fossil fuels. It is a system comprised of solar modules, inverters, batteries, a hydrogen generator, a fuel cell and a hydrogen storage tank.
When there is solar power, the solar modules produce renewable energy that is collected through a solar inverter, which charges a bank of batteries
through a battery inverter. After the batteries are fully charged, the excess electricity is then combined with water through a hydrogen generator that extracts the
hydrogen from the water in a gasified state, which is safely transferred to the hydrogen tank and stored for later use. If the tank is full, excess electricity is sent
from the batteries through the battery inverter to the utility grid, which results in energy credits for the system owner.
The HC-1 system is connected to the residential or commercial property through the inverters. The electricity is always provided by the charged batteries.
If there is no solar power to charge the batteries, the system keeps the batteries fully charged by using hydrogen stored in the tank, which processed through a fuel
cell, creates the electricity. As the system is able to produce hydrogen, that keeps the hydrogen tank full, it provides a continuous supply of clean energy and
sustainability that is independent from the grid.
Each HC-1 system is custom designed to accommodate the electrical loads for an end user. The system is completely scalable. Typically, one HC-1
standard system configuration with a solar modules and a large tank for hydrogen storage can provide 40 kWh per day, which is the average amount of electricity
utilized by homes in the U.S. If the customer is connected to the electric grid, energy production that is converted to hydrogen in excess of the amount stored in the
hydrogen tank is transferred to the local electric company, creating energy credits.
For an HC-1 system installation, the battery inverters and batteries are placed in the interior of the house or building. The hydrogen generator, fuel cell,
electronics, pipes and tubing are kept in an outdoor enclosure near the house or building. The solar modules and solar inverters are outdoors and can be configured
on the house or building or on land depending on available space. The hydrogen tank is typically underground but can be placed above ground, if necessary.
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Hydrogen Tank Connected

Standard System Configuration
While the HC-1 system is completely scalable up or down, outlined below is the standard system configuration for a residential installation.
Power Specifications :
●

12,000 watts of electric solar power

●

1,200 ampere hour (AH) 48v battery pack power

●

1,100 watts of hydrogen fuel cell power

Component Specifications :
●

(40) 320 watt solar modules and racking

●

(2) 6,000 watt solar inverters

●

(24) 400 AH 6v valve regulated lead acid batteries

●

(2) 6,000 watt off grid battery inverters

●

(1) battery combiner and enclosure

●

(1) 1,100 watt hydrogen fuel cell

●

(1) H2 To Go hydrogen generator 600/cc @ 250 psi

●

(1) communications controller, card and interface

●

(1) outdoor enclosure

●

(1) 1,000 gallon hydrogen storage tank

We do not manufacture any of the components of our HC-1 system. All components are purchased from various suppliers. We do not have any formal
relationships with any suppliers as all of the components are readily available off-the-shelf from a number of various suppliers. As such, when we need to obtain
components, we are able to source such components at that time and at the best available price.
Each project is customized to meet the particular needs of the client. Various factors, including the size of the residence, the amount of electricity needed
to be generated and the amount and intensity of solar availability, all impact the price charged on a project. We anticipate that the anticipated range of prices for a
hydrogen energy system is expected to be between $35,000 and $200,000.
Cost Savings
We believe that the HC-1 system has the potential to generate an excellent return on investment over time. However, we acknowledge that the initial cost
of adopting a hydrogen energy system today is a significant hurdle for potential customers, as the short-term costs of electricity produced by fossil fuels is
significantly cheaper to a customer than from our system, as we anticipate it will take approximately eight and one-half years before a customer has an overall net
gain from our system.
For example, according to the Bureau of Labor and Statistics, the average cost in the New York/New Jersey area is 19.1 cents per kWh for the supply of
electricity. An average customer in the State of New Jersey using 40 kWh per day spends approximately $300 per month on their electric bill, which includes the
cost of the supply of electricity, the costs by the local utility company for the delivery of the electricity and taxes. It would cost the customer approximately
$100,000 to buy our hydrogen energy system to provide that same amount of electricity. The owner received a 30% investment tax credit from the federal
government for the installation of the renewable energy system. That tax credit results in a savings of $30,000, bringing the cost of the system down to $70,000.
The $300 monthly average electricity bill is eliminated, resulting in annual savings of $3,600, as the system produces all the electricity needed and also
generates excess electricity that the system will generate about 18 SRECs per year. Those 18 SRECs are sold for approximately $4,500. As a result, the $70,000
HC-1 system will be repaid to the user in approximately 8.6 years, as the user is achieving annual savings of $8,100. Our calculation of cost savings assumes that
the customer has purchased the system outright and not financed the purchase and does not include any maintenance costs that may be required in connection with
the system. Further benefits include having a clean renewable energy source that protects our environment, lessening dependence on the aging grid and allowing
for a backup power generation system if the grid malfunctions from a natural disaster or cyber-attack.
To date, there have been minimal maintenance costs for the hydrogen electric systems built, averaging less than $300 per year. In addition, there is a
minimal amount of water required, no more than five gallons annually to keep the standard system replenished. The estimated life span of the system has not yet
been determined at this time, as it is a relatively new application of the technology, but the first system was installed over 10 years ago and continues to properly
operate.
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The calculation of the number of SRECs generated each year is based upon historical results from the hydrogen electric system built to date. However, we
have a very limited sample size, which may not be meaningful or accurate for all potential customers. As we are in our early stage of development with our
systems, the potential cost savings may not be proven and we cannot provide any assurances to potential customers that they will achieve cost savings in the future,
if at all. In addition, our calculations assume that the price of electricity remains relatively stable. If the price of electricity decreases, then it will take longer for a
user to see savings from our system, and if the price of electricity increases, then a user should see savings in a shorter than anticipated timeframe.
Consulting and Installation Services
We will manage all projects directly and will be involved in all aspects of energy infrastructure build-out utilizing existing staff and subcontractors. We
provide customers with an initial consultation free of charge, whereby we will review the customer’s location and utility bills to understand their historical energy
consumption. We will then generate a proposal outline, indicating what type of system they will need, and what potential tax credits and energy credits they will be
entitled to with our HC-1 system.
If the customer wishes to proceed, we are paid $5,000 to conduct a feasibility study, which involves:
●

Determining what government authorizations are required to proceed;

●

Determining what zoning regulations apply to the project site;

●

Designing site plans and determining what site permits are required;

●

Conducting an energy audit;

●

Providing the preliminary system design and drawings; and

●

Drafting of the project contract.

Upon execution of the final contract, and payment of the initial fee, we initiate the system installation, which involves.
●

Assignment of the project manager;

●

Completed photovoltaic design with signed and sealed drawings;

●

Completed electrical distribution and interconnection design with signed and sealed drawings;

●

Execution and filing of all local construction permits and fees on behalf of the system end user;

●

Completed public utility interconnection applications;

●

Submission of all construction liability and professional liability insurance forms;

●

Confirmation of safety compliance;

●

Site preparation for implementation;

●

System installation, completion of all cabling, system start-up, testing and commissioning;

●

Site restoration; and

●

Preparation of closeout documents with as-built drawings and photos.

All project work is performed to specifications that meet local utility requirements as well as domestic and international building codes. Once the system
is operational, we remotely receive data to monitor its performance and energy efficiency to confirm the system is functioning as expected. We will also provide
any additional maintenance required at standard labor rates. We provide a standard one year warranty on our workmanship. Each of the components has a
manufacturer’s warranty that is at least one year in duration. If components need to be replaced after the one year workmanship warranty, we will secure
replacement components, under warranty if possible, and we will install at our standard labor rates.
Growth Strategy
Currently, our employees are licensed to install our HC-1 systems in the State of New Jersey. We intend to aggressively grow our business, both
organically and through strategic acquisitions. We intend to acquire companies with licensed contractors in various states and regions, which will allow us to
expand the territories in which we can build our systems. These acquired companies will also provide us with a consistent revenue stream, a customer base for
marketing our HC-1 systems and technicians.
Pride Subsidiary
On January 31, 2017, we entered into a share exchange agreement (the “Exchange Agreement”) with The Pride Group (QLD) Pty Ltd., an Australian
corporation (“Pride”), Turquino Equity LLC (“Turquino”) and Stephen Paul Mullane and Marie Louise Mullane as Trustees of the Mullane Family Trust (together

with Turquino, the “Pride Shareholders”). Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Pride from the Pride
Shareholders in exchange for an aggregate of 3,800,000 shares of our common stock. Andrew Hidalgo and Matthew Hidalgo, our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, respectively, are each a managing partner of Turquino.
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Pride sells, designs, installs and maintains a variety of technology products in the security systems market, including commercial alarm systems, access
control, video surveillance, CCTV (closed circuit television)/MATV (master antenna television) systems, biometric technology, audio/visual systems, nurse call
systems and public announcement systems. Pride also provides programs for annual maintenance of its products and systems. The division generates
approximately half of its revenue from government contracts and the other half from the commercial sector. Pride has recurring annual maintenance revenue of
close to AUD $2 million. Pride is a certified security systems integrator for the Queensland Government and has various government contracts in place for
installation, maintenance and project services. Pride also works with a number of general contractors as a subcontractor for security systems integration.
Pride Energy Systems is Pride’s clean energy division, which sells, designs, installs and maintains a variety of technology services in the clean energy
market, including audits of energy consumption, review of energy and tax credits available, feasibility studies, solar/battery energy system design, zoning and
permitting analysis, site design/preparation and restoration, system startup, testing and commissioning and maintenance. The division has just begun to bid for
clean energy systems and is focused on the residential, commercial and government sectors. The division is able to utilize the many contacts established in the
security systems division.
Australia presents a significant opportunity for us. According to The Clean Energy Australia Report of 2015, renewable energy provided 14.6 % of
Australia’s electricity in 2015, enough to provide power for the equivalent of approximately 6.7 million average homes. This was up from the 13.5 % of electricity
from renewable energy the year before. The combination of Australia’s dry climate and latitude is an ideal environment for solar energy production. One in five
residential households are turning to solar energy for their electricity needs. Since the Australian outback and outlying islands near Australia having minimal and
costly access to the grid, our renewable energy systems are an attractive option.
Completed Projects
As previously mentioned, the hydrogen house concept began as a non-profit organization that completed four hydrogen house projects. Outlined below
are descriptions of two of these installations.
Strizki Property, Hopewell, NJ
This was the first solar hydrogen energy system installed in North America. Completed in 2006, the installation is comprised of land-based and roofbased solar modules, 10 above ground tanks each holding 1,000 gallons of gasified hydrogen, six inverters, 48 6v batteries, a hydrogen generator and a fuel cell. At
the time, the cost of this system was $185,000 due to the additional solar modules, storage tanks, inverters and batteries, which have all since, come down in price.
This 2,800 square foot home can operate completely off the grid but is connected to the grid in order to generate energy credits. The home produces approximately
$8,000 in SRECs per year.
De Tiberge Property, Pennington, NJ
This project was completed in 2015 and was comprised of land-based solar modules, one underground tank that holds 1,000 gallons of gasified hydrogen,
four solar inverters, four battery inverters, 24 6v batteries, a hydrogen generator and a fuel cell. The sale price for the system was $185,000. The higher sales price
reflects a larger solar module installation and multiple inverters. The system was purchased outright by the owner and included a 30% investment tax credit from
the federal government. The dwelling is a 2,300 square foot home that had an average monthly electricity bill of $680. With the installation of the solar hydrogen
energy system, the property generates approximately $9,000 in SRECs per year and saving approximately $8,000 per year as there is no electricity bill.
Competition
Given the increasing focus on renewable energy to offset the environmental problems caused by fossil fuels, the renewable energy industry is highly
competitive, and rapidly evolving. Our major competitors include leading global companies, and other regional and local energy providers.
In the markets where we plan to conduct business, we will compete with many energy producers including electric utilities and large independent power
producers. There is also competition from fossil fuel sources such as natural gas and coal, and other renewable energy sources such as solar and wind. The
competition depends on the resources available within the specific markets. However, we believe that our unique system allows us to compete favorably with
traditional utilities and other renewable energy systems in the regions we service.
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Although the cost to produce clean, reliable, renewable energy is becoming more competitive with traditional fossil fuel sources, it generally remains
more expensive to produce, and the reliability of its supply is less consistent than traditional fossil fuel. Deregulation and consumer preference are becoming
important factors in increasing the development of renewable energy projects.
However, as a newly formed company, substantially all of our competitors have advantages over us in terms of greater operational, financial, technical,
management or other resources in particular markets or in general. While hydrogen energy has certain advantages when compared to other power generating
technologies, it is one of the newer and less established methods of renewable energy and therefore currently has less market acceptance.
Governmental Regulation
We are subject to laws and regulations affecting our operations in a number of areas. These U.S. and foreign laws and regulations affect the Company’s
activities which include, but are not limited to, the areas of zoning, permitting, labor, advertising, consumer protection, real estate, billing, quality of services,
intellectual property and ownership and infringement, tax, import and export requirements, anti-corruption, foreign exchange controls and cash repatriation
restrictions, data privacy requirements, anti-competition, environmental, and health and safety. In the U.S., our operations are subject to stringent and complex
federal, state and local laws and regulations governing the occupational health and safety of our employees and wage regulations. For example, we are subject to
the requirements of the federal Occupational Safety and Health Act, as amended, or OSHA, and comparable state laws that protect and regulate employee health
and safety. We expend resources to maintain compliance with OSHA requirements and industry best practices.
Regulatory Matters
If a customer wishes to connect our system to the electrical grid in order to generate renewable energy credits, the customer needs to obtain
interconnection agreements from the applicable local primary electricity utility. Prior to an installation of the HC-1 system, on behalf of the customer, we will
submit an interconnection application with the local public utility company to become a certified renewable energy generator. Approval of the application is based
on a balance of historical consumption and the amount of renewable energy to be produced. In almost all cases, interconnection agreements are standard form
agreements that have been pre-approved by the local public utility commission or other regulatory body with jurisdiction over interconnection. As such, no
additional regulatory approvals are required once interconnection agreements are signed. In our experience, there has not been any cost involved in obtaining an
interconnection agreement, but as the requirements are determined on a local basis, it may be possible that some nominal costs are involved in connection with the
process.
Government Incentives
We intend to focus on states or countries whose government supports a regulatory standard requiring its utility companies to increase their production of
energy from renewable energy sources. These governments have established various incentives and financial mechanisms to accelerate and promote the use of
renewable energy sources. Currently, many states comply with regulatory standards including New Jersey, Massachusetts, Pennsylvania, Maryland, Ohio,
Delaware, North Carolina, Virginia, Kentucky, West Virginia, Michigan, Indiana, Illinois as well as the District of Columbia. In addition, countries such as the
United Kingdom, Australia, Italy, Poland, Sweden, Belgium and Chile have adopted regulatory standards. The list is expanding each year.
If the customer obtains an interconnection agreement from the applicable local primary electricity utility, once the HC-1 system is operational, the HC-1
system end user can eliminate their electric bill and, if in a permissible state, can begin generating SRECs. In certain states, an end user receives one SREC for
each 1,000 kWh produced through renewal energy. The customer sells these SRECs to a broker who in turn sells the credits to a utility company so that the utility
company can demonstrate their compliance with the regulatory obligations to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The price per SREC can vary depending on supply
and demand, but on average, SRECs sells for $250. Many other states, which may not offer an SREC program, as well as the Federal government, do offer other
cash and tax incentives for renewable energy systems.
Employees
As of March 22, 2017, we had 45 full time employees, of which 40 work for Pride. We plan to hire employees on an as-needed basis. None of our
employees are represented by a labor union, and we believe that our relations with our employees are good.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Company and Our Business
We have a short operating history and have generated minimal revenue to date. This makes it difficult to evaluate our future prospects and increases the risk
that we will not be successful.
We were incorporated in August 2015, have been operating for less than two years and have generated minimal revenue to date. No assurances can be
given that we will generate any significant revenue in the future, if at all. As a result, we have a very limited operating history for you to evaluate in assessing our
future prospects. Our inability to produce significant revenues in the near term may harm our ability to obtain additional financing and may require us to reduce or
discontinue our operations. We are subject to all risks inherent in a developing business enterprise. Our likelihood of continued success must be considered in light
of the problems, expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays frequently encountered in connection with the services industry and the competitive and
regulatory environment in which we operate. As a new industry, there are few established companies whose business models we can follow. Similarly, there is
little information about comparable companies for potential investors to review in making a decision about whether to invest in the Company.
Potential investors should consider, among other factors, our prospects for success in light of the risks and uncertainties generally encountered by
companies that, like us, are in their early stages. We may not successfully address these risks and uncertainties or successfully implement our operating strategies.
If we fail to do so, it could materially harm our business to the point of having to cease operations and could impair the value of our common stock to the point
investors may lose their entire investment.
For as long as we are an emerging growth company, we will not be required to comply with certain reporting requirements, including those relating to
accounting standards and disclosure about our executive compensation, that apply to other public companies.
In April 2012, the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, or the JOBS Act, was signed into law. The JOBS Act contains provisions that, among other
things, relax certain reporting requirements for “emerging growth companies,” including certain requirements relating to accounting standards and compensation
disclosure. We are classified as an emerging growth company. For as long as we are an emerging growth company, which may be up to five full fiscal years, unlike
other public companies, we will not be required to, among other things, (1) provide an auditor’s attestation report on management’s assessment of the effectiveness
of our system of internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, (2) comply with any new requirements
adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, or the PCAOB, requiring mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor’s report in
which the auditor would be required to provide additional information about the audit and the financial statements of the issuer, (3) comply with any new audit
rules adopted by the PCAOB after April 5, 2012 unless the SEC determines otherwise, (4) provide certain disclosure regarding executive compensation required of
larger public companies or (5) hold unit holder advisory votes on executive compensation.
Our services have never been provided on a mass market commercial basis, and we do not know whether they will be accepted by the market.
The market for residential or commercial properties to run on hydrogen energy is a relatively new concept and the extent to which its use will be widely
adopted is uncertain. To date, we are only aware of four homes, which we installed, that have been successful with this technology, and that is not a large enough
market to prove our concept. If our services are not accepted by the market our financial condition will be negatively impacted. The development of a successful
market for our proposed operations and our ability to implement our business plan may be affected by a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control.
If our proposed operations fail to gain sufficient market acceptance, our business plans, prospects, results of operations and financial condition will be negatively
impacted.
If hydrogen energy technology is not suitable for widespread adoption at economically attractive rates of return or if sufficient additional demand for hydrogen
energy systems does not develop or takes longer to develop than we anticipate, we may not achieve significant net sales and we may be unable to obtain or
sustain profitability.
In comparison to fossil fuel-based electricity generation, the hydrogen energy market is at an early stage of development. If hydrogen technology proves
unsuitable for widespread adoption at economically attractive rates of return or if additional demand for hydrogen energy systems fails to develop sufficiently or
takes longer to develop than we anticipate, we may be unable to grow our business or generate sufficient net sales to obtain profitability. In addition, demand for
hydrogen energy systems in our targeted markets may develop to a lesser extent than we anticipate. Many factors may affect the viability of widespread adoption
of hydrogen energy technology and demand for hydrogen energy systems, including the following:
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●

cost-effectiveness of the electricity generated by hydrogen energy systems compared to conventional energy sources, such as natural gas and coal
(which fuel sources may be subject to significant price fluctuations from time to time), and other non-solar renewable energy sources, such as solar or
wind;

●

performance, reliability, and availability of energy generated by hydrogen energy systems compared to conventional and other renewable energy
sources and products, particularly conventional energy generation capable of providing 24-hour, non-intermittent baseload power;

●

success of other renewable energy generation technologies, such as solar, hydroelectric, tidal, wind, geothermal, and biomass;

●

fluctuations in economic and market conditions that affect the price of, and demand for, conventional and non-solar renewable energy sources, such
as increases or decreases in the prices of natural gas, coal, oil, and other fossil fuels;

●

fluctuations in capital expenditures by end-users of renewable energy systems, which tend to decrease when the economy slows and when interest
rates increase; and

●

availability, substance, and magnitude of support programs including government targets, subsidies, incentives, and renewable portfolio standards to
accelerate the development of the hydrogen energy industry.

Our business currently depends on the availability of rebates, tax credits and other financial incentives. The expiration, elimination or reduction of these
rebates, credits and incentives would adversely impact our business.
U.S. federal, state and local government bodies provide incentives to end users, distributors, system integrators and manufacturers of renewable energy
systems like ours to promote renewable energy electricity in the form of rebates, tax credits and other financial incentives such as system performance payments,
payments for renewable energy credits associated with renewable energy generation and the exclusion of renewable energy systems from property tax assessments.
We rely on these governmental rebates, tax credits and other financial incentives to incentivize customers to buy our HC-1 systems. However, these incentives may
expire on a particular date, end when the allocated funding is exhausted or be reduced or terminated as solar energy adoption rates increase. These reductions or
terminations often occur without warning.
The federal government currently offers a 30% investment tax credit of qualified expenditures under Section 25D of the Internal Revenue Code, or the
Federal ITC, for the installation of certain residential renewable energy systems, such as our HC-1 system. The credit will remain at 30% for projects that are
placed in service by December 31, 2019, then decline to 26% for systems placed in service by December 21, 2020, and to 22% for systems placed in service by
December 31, 2021. The credit is scheduled to expire effective January 1, 2022. This credit was previously scheduled to expire effective January 1, 2017, and there
can be no assurances that it will be further extended, or if extended, that the amount of the tax credit will remain at the same levels.
Reductions in, eliminations of, or expirations of, governmental incentives could adversely impact our results of operations and ability to compete in our
industry by increasing the overall cost of the HC-1 system to our customers, which would effectively reduce the size of our addressable market.
We rely on net metering and related policies to attract and incentivize customers to purchase our hydrogen energy systems.
Forty-one states, Washington, D.C. and Puerto Rico have a regulatory policy known as net energy metering, or net metering, available to new customers.
Each of the states where we currently intend to provide our services and products has adopted a net metering policy. Net metering allows our customers to
interconnect their hydrogen energy systems to the utility grid and offset their utility electricity purchases by receiving a bill credit at the utility’s retail rate for
energy generated by their solar energy system that is exported to the grid in excess of the electric load used by the customers. At the end of the billing period, the
customer simply pays for the net energy used or receives a credit at the retail rate if more energy is produced than consumed. Utilities operating in states without a
net metering policy may receive hydrogen electricity that is exported to the grid when there is no simultaneous energy demand by the customer without providing
retail compensation to the customer for this generation.
Our ability to sell our hydrogen energy systems and the electricity they generate may be adversely impacted by the failure to expand existing limits on the
amount of net metering in states that have implemented it, the failure to adopt a net metering policy where it currently is not in place, the imposition of new
charges that only or disproportionately impact customers that utilize net metering or reductions in the amount or value of credit that customers receive through net
metering. Our ability to sell our HC-1 systems and our customers’ ability to sell the electricity they generate may also be adversely impacted by the unavailability
of expedited or simplified interconnection for grid-tied hydrogen energy systems or any limitation on the number of customer interconnections or amount of
hydrogen energy that utilities are required to allow in their service territory or some part of the grid. For example, in October 2015, the Hawaii Public Utilities
Commission capped the state’s net metering program at existing levels, and in late-December 2015, the Nevada Public Utilities Commission effectively capped the
state’s net metering program at existing levels and imposed additional monthly charges on customers who interconnect their renewable energy systems. In
addition, utilities in some states, such as Arizona, have proposed imposing additional monthly charges on customers who interconnect renewable energy systems
installed on their homes. If such charges are imposed, the cost savings associated with switching to hydrogen energy may be significantly reduced and our ability
to attract future customers could be impacted.
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Existing electric utility industry regulations, and changes to regulations, may present technical, regulatory and economic barriers to the purchase and use of
hydrogen energy systems that may reduce demand for our hydrogen energy systems.
Federal, state and local government regulations and policies concerning the electric utility industry, utility rate structures, interconnection procedures,
internal policies and regulations promulgated by electric utilities, heavily influence the market for electricity generation products and services. These regulations
and policies often relate to electricity pricing and the interconnection of customer-owned electricity generation. In the United States, governments and utilities
continuously modify these regulations and policies. These regulations and policies could deter potential customers from purchasing renewable energy, including
our HC-1 systems. This could result in a reduction in potential demand for our hydrogen energy systems. In addition, depending on the region, electricity generated
by our HC-1 systems would compete most effectively with higher priced peak-hour electricity from the electric grid, rather than the lower average price of
electricity. Modifications to the utilities’ peak-hour pricing policies or rate design, such as a flat rate, would require us to lower the price of our hydrogen energy
systems to compete with the price of electricity from the electric grid.
Future changes to government or internal utility regulations and policies that favor electric utilities could also reduce our competitiveness, cause a
significant reduction in demand for our products and services, and threaten the economics of our existing energy contracts. For example, in October 2015, the
Hawaii Public Utilities Commission capped the state’s net metering program at existing levels and net metering no longer is available to new customers. In lateDecember 2015, the Nevada Public Utilities Commission also effectively capped the state’s net metering program at existing levels and net metering no longer is
available to new customers. In addition, Nevada’s new rules include significant additional monthly charges on customers who interconnect their solar energy
systems, significant reduction in the amount of bill credit for energy generated by their solar energy system that is exported to the grid in excess of electric load
used by customers, and application of the new rules to existing customers with solar energy systems.
Project development or construction activities may not be successful and proposed projects may not receive required permits or construction may not proceed
as planned.
The development and construction of our proposed projects will involve various risks. Success in developing a particular project is contingent upon,
among other things: (i) negotiation of satisfactory engineering, procurement and construction agreements; (ii) receipt of required governmental permits and
approvals, including the right to interconnect to the electric grid on economically acceptable terms; (iii) payment of interconnection and other deposits (some of
which may be non-refundable); and (iv) timely implementation and satisfactory completion of construction.
Successful completion of a particular project may be adversely affected by numerous factors, including: (i) delays in obtaining required governmental
permits and approvals with acceptable conditions; (ii) unforeseen engineering problems; (iii) construction delays and contractor performance shortfalls; (iv) work
stoppages; (v) cost over-runs; (vi) equipment and materials supply; (vii) adverse weather conditions; and (viii) environmental and geological conditions.
The hydrogen energy industry competes with both conventional power industries and other renewable power industries.
The hydrogen energy industry faces intense competition from companies in the energy industry, such as nuclear, natural gas and fossil fuels as well as
other renewable energy providers, including solar, biomass and wind. Other energy sources may benefit from innovations that reduce costs, increase safety or
otherwise improve their competitiveness. New natural resources may be discovered, or global economic, business or political developments may disproportionately
benefit conventional energy sources. Governments may support certain renewable energy sources and not support hydrogen energy. If we cannot compete with the
providers of other energy sources, it may materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.
To execute our overall business strategy, we will likely require additional working capital, which may not be available on terms favorable to us or at all. If
additional capital is not available or is available at unattractive terms, we may be forced to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate our operations.
We have an ambitious business plan for strong growth of our business, which will likely require us to raise additional financing to supplement our cash
flows from operations to fully execute. We intend to use proceeds from our recent private placement to implement our business strategy. We believe that since we
are now a public company, we will have a greater potential ability to issue stock in lieu of cash, including for acquisitions and employee retention.
We expect that we will require additional financing to execute our business strategy. To the extent we raise additional capital through the sale of equity
securities, the issuance of those securities could result in dilution to our shareholders. In addition, if we obtain debt financing, a substantial portion of our operating
cash flow may be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on such indebtedness, thus limiting funds available for our business activities. If adequate
funds are not available, we may be required to reduce our marketing and sales efforts or reduce or curtail our operations.
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There can be no assurance that if we were to need additional funds to meet obligations we have incurred, or may incur in the future, that additional
financing arrangements would be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Furthermore, if adequate additional funds are not available, we may be
required to delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate material parts of the implementation of our business strategy.
We face strong competition from other energy companies, including traditional and renewable providers.
Although we offer a unique solution, the energy provider business is competitive. Our competitors range in size from small companies to large
multinational corporations. Our main competitors vary by region and energy services offered. We compete against other renewable energy providers that offer
solar and wind, as well as traditional electricity providers. Almost all of our competitors have greater financial and other resources than we do and may be able to
grow more quickly or better respond to changing business and economic conditions. Many of our competitors also have greater access to capital and we may not be
able to compete successfully with them.
Our lack of diversification will increase the risk of an investment in us, and our financial condition and results of operations may deteriorate if we fail to
diversify.
Our current business focuses primarily on one area of the renewable energy space, the hydrogen energy sector. Larger companies have the ability to
manage their risk by diversification. However, we currently lack diversification, specifically in terms of the nature of our business. As a result, we will likely be
impacted more acutely by factors affecting our industry and sector in which we operate, than we would if our business were more diversified, enhancing our risk
profile.
If we fail to successfully introduce new products or services, we may lose market position.
New products, product improvements, line extensions or new services will be an important factor in our sales growth. If we fail to identify emerging
technological trends, to maintain and improve the competitiveness of our existing products and services or to successfully introduce new products or services on a
timely basis, we may lose market position.
The industry in which we operate has relatively low barriers to entry and increased competition could result in margin erosion, which would make profitability
even more difficult to sustain.
Other than the technical skills required in our business, the barriers to entry in our business are relatively low. We do not have any intellectual property
rights to protect our business methods and business start-up costs do not pose a significant barrier to entry. The success of our business is dependent on our
employees, customer relations and the successful performance of our services. If we face increased competition as a result of new entrants in our markets, we could
experience reduced operating margins and loss of market share and brand recognition.
Our failure to attract and retain engineering personnel or maintain appropriate staffing levels could adversely affect our business.
Our success depends upon our attracting and retaining skilled engineering personnel. Competition for such skilled personnel in our industry is high and at
times can be extremely intense, especially for engineers and project managers, and we cannot be certain that we will be able to hire sufficiently qualified personnel
in adequate numbers to meet the demand for our services. We also believe that our success depends to a significant extent on the ability of our key personnel to
operate effectively, both individually and as a group. Additionally, we cannot be certain that we will be able to hire the requisite number of experienced and skilled
personnel when necessary in order to service the number of contracts we may have at a particular time, particularly if the market for related personnel is
competitive. Conversely, if we maintain or increase our staffing levels in anticipation of one or more projects and the projects are delayed, reduced or terminated,
we may underutilize the additional personnel, which could reduce our operating margins, reduce our earnings and possibly harm our results of operations. If we are
unable to obtain a sufficient number of contracts or effectively complete such contracts due to staffing deficiencies, our revenues may decline and we may
experience continued losses.
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Acquisitions involve risks that could result in a reduction of our operating results, cash flows and liquidity.
We currently intend to grow our business substantially by making strategic acquisitions, although we currently have no agreements to do so. However, we
may not be able to identify suitable acquisition opportunities, or may be unable to complete such acquisitions. We may pay for acquisitions with our common stock
or with convertible securities, which may dilute your investment in our common stock, or we may decide to pursue acquisitions that investors may not agree with.
In connection with our acquisitions, we may also agree to substantial earn-out arrangements. To the extent we defer the payment of the purchase price for any
acquisition through a cash earn-out arrangement, it will reduce our cash flows in subsequent periods. In addition, acquisitions may expose us to operational
challenges and risks, including:
●

the ability to profitably manage acquired businesses or successfully integrate the acquired business’ operations and financial reporting and accounting
control systems into our business;

●

increased indebtedness and contingent purchase price obligations associated with an acquisition;

●

the ability to fund cash flow shortages that may occur if anticipated revenue is not realized or is delayed, whether by general economic or market
conditions, or unforeseen internal difficulties;

●

the availability of funding sufficient to meet increased capital needs;

●

diversion of management’s attention; and

●

the ability to retain or hire qualified personnel required for expanded operations.

Completing acquisitions may require significant management time and financial resources because we may need to assimilate widely dispersed operations
with distinct corporate cultures. In addition, acquired companies may have liabilities that we failed, or were unable, to discover in the course of performing due
diligence investigations. We cannot assure you that the indemnification granted to us by sellers of acquired companies will be sufficient in amount, scope or
duration to fully offset the possible liabilities associated with businesses or properties we assume upon consummation of an acquisition. We may learn additional
information about our acquired businesses that materially adversely affect us, such as unknown or contingent liabilities and liabilities related to compliance with
applicable laws. Any such liabilities, individually or in the aggregate, could have a material adverse effect on our business.
Failure to successfully manage the operational challenges and risks associated with, or resulting from, acquisitions could adversely affect our results of
operations, cash flows and liquidity. Borrowings or issuances of convertible securities associated with these acquisitions may also result in higher levels of
indebtedness.
Liability claims could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.
We face an inherent business risk of exposure to liability claims arising from the alleged failure of our services, including the individual components in
our systems. Any material uninsured losses due to liability claims that we experience could subject us to material losses. We could be required to redesign our
services if they prove to be defective. We maintain insurance against liability claims, but it is possible that our insurance coverage will not continue to be available
on terms acceptable to us or that such coverage will not be adequate for liabilities actually incurred. A successful claim brought against us in excess of available
insurance coverage, or any claim that results in significant expense or adverse publicity against us, could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating
results and financial condition.
We are dependent upon key personnel whose loss may adversely impact our business.
We rely heavily on the expertise, experience and continued services of our founders, especially Andrew Hidalgo, our Chief Executive Officer, President
and Chairman of the Board, Mike Strizki, our Chief Technology Officer and the developer of the hydrogen house concept and James Strizki, our Executive Vice
President of Technical Services. We currently do not have employment agreements with any of our executive officers and they are not restricted from leaving or
competing against us. The loss of either of these individuals, or an inability to attract or retain other key individuals, could materially adversely affect us. We seek
to compensate and motivate these individuals, as well as other personnel, through competitive cash and equity compensation, but there can be no assurance that
these programs will allow us to retain key personnel or hire new key personnel. As a result, if any member of our key personnel were to leave, we could face
substantial difficulty in hiring a qualified successor and could experience a loss in productivity while any such successor obtains the necessary training and
experience.
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Our resources may not be sufficient to manage our expected growth; failure to properly manage our potential growth would be detrimental to our business.
We may fail to adequately manage our anticipated future growth. Any growth in our operations could place a significant strain on our administrative,
financial and operational resources, and increase demands on our management and on our operational and administrative systems, controls and other resources. We
cannot assure you that our existing personnel, systems, procedures or controls will be adequate to support our operations in the future or that we will be able to
successfully implement appropriate measures consistent with our growth strategy. As part of this growth, we may have to implement new operational and financial
systems, procedures and controls to expand, train and manage our employee base, and maintain close coordination among our staff. We cannot guarantee that we
will be able to do so, or that if we are able to do so, we will be able to effectively integrate them into our existing staff and systems.
If we are unable to manage growth effectively, such as if our sales and marketing efforts exceed our capacity to perform our services and maintain our
products or if new employees are unable to achieve performance levels, our business, operating results and financial condition could be materially adversely
affected. As with all expanding businesses, the potential exists that growth will occur rapidly. If we are unable to effectively manage this growth, our business and
operating results could be negatively impacted. Anticipated growth in future operations may place a significant strain on management systems and resources. In
addition, the integration of new personnel will continue to result in some disruption to ongoing operations. The ability to effectively manage growth in a rapidly
evolving market requires effective planning and management processes. We will need to continue to improve operational, financial and managerial controls,
reporting systems and procedures, and will need to continue to expand, train and manage our work force. Our success depends in part on our maintaining high
quality customer service and any failure to do so could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Failure to properly manage projects may result in unanticipated costs or claims.
Our project engagements may involve large scale, highly complex projects. The quality of our performance on such projects depends in large part upon
our ability to manage the relationship with our customers, and to effectively manage the project and deploy appropriate resources, in a timely manner. Any defects
or errors or failure to meet customers’ expectations could result in claims for substantial damages against us. Our contracts generally limit our liability for damages
that arise from negligent acts, errors, mistakes or omissions in rendering services to our customers. However, we cannot be sure that these contractual provisions
will protect us from liability for damages in the event of litigation.
We are subject to operating and litigation risks that may not be covered by insurance.
Our business operations are subject to all of the operating hazards and risks normally incidental to the implementation of systems involving combustible
products, such as liquefied petroleum gases, propane, natural gas and hydrogen gas, and the generation of electricity. Accidents involving our hydrogen energy
systems, including leaks, ruptures, fires, explosions, sabotage and mechanical problems, could result in substantial losses due to personal injury and/or loss of life,
and severe damage to and destruction of property and equipment arising from explosions and other catastrophic events. If such accidents were to occur, we could
face lawsuits from our clients alleging that we were responsible for such accidents. There can be no assurance that our insurance will be adequate to protect us
from all material expenses related to future claims or that such levels of insurance will be available in the future at economical prices.
Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Our officers, directors and principal shareholders will own a controlling interest in our voting stock and investors will not have any voice in our management.
Our officers, directors and principal shareholders, in the aggregate, beneficially own or control the votes of approximately 91.3% of our outstanding
common stock. As a result, these stockholders, acting together, will have the ability to control substantially all matters submitted to our stockholders for approval,
including:
●

election of our board of directors;

●

removal of any of our directors;

●

amendment of our articles of incorporation or bylaws; and

●

adoption of measures that could delay or prevent a change in control or impede a merger, takeover or other business combination involving us.

As a result of their ownership and positions, our directors, executive officers and principal shareholders collectively are able to influence all matters
requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. In addition, sales of significant amounts of
shares held by our directors, executive officers or principal shareholders, or the prospect of these sales, could adversely affect the market price of our common
stock. Management’s stock ownership may discourage a potential acquirer from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain control of us, which in
turn could reduce our stock price or prevent our stockholders from realizing a premium over our stock price.
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We have not paid cash dividends in the past and do not expect to pay cash dividends in the future. Any return on investment may be limited to the value of our
common stock .
We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The payment of dividends
on our common stock will depend on earnings, financial condition and other business and economic factors affecting it at such time as the board of directors may
consider relevant.
We may raise capital through the sale of our securities in either private placements or a public offering, which offerings would dilute the ownership of
investors in this private offering.
If our operations require additional capital in the future, we may sell additional share of our common stock and/or securities convertible into or
exchangeable or exercisable for shares of our common stock. Such offerings may be in private placements or a public offering. If we conduct such additional
offerings, an investor would experience dilution of his ownership of the Company.
You may experience dilution of your ownership interests because of the future issuance of additional shares of our common or preferred stock or other
securities that are convertible into or exercisable for our common or preferred stock.
In the future, we may issue our authorized but previously unissued equity securities, resulting in the dilution of the ownership interests of our present
stockholders. We are authorized to issue an aggregate of 25,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock. In addition,
we have reserved 2,500,000 shares of common stock for issuance under our 2016 stock option incentive plan, of which 1 million options have been issued and are
currently exercisable at $0.01 per share. We may issue additional shares of our common stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable for our
common stock in connection with hiring or retaining employees, future acquisitions, future sales of our securities for capital raising purposes, or for other business
purposes. The future issuance of any such additional shares of our common stock may create downward pressure on the trading price of the common stock. We
will likely need to raise additional capital in the near future to meet our working capital needs, and there can be no assurance that we will not be required to issue
additional shares, warrants or other convertible securities in the future in conjunction with these capital raising efforts, including at a price (or exercise or
conversion prices) that could be below the price an investor paid for stock.
There has been a limited trading market for our common stock and limited market activity to date.
Currently, our common stock is available for quotation on the OTCQB Market under the symbol “HCCC.” However, our stock only became eligible for
quotation in November 2016 and prior to February 2017, there was no trading activity in our common stock and only a few trades have occurred to date. It is
anticipated that there will be a limited trading market for the common stock on the OTCQB. The lack of an active market may impair your ability to sell your
shares at the time you wish to sell them or at a price that you consider reasonable. The lack of an active market may also reduce the fair market value of your
shares. An inactive market may also impair our ability to raise capital by selling shares of capital stock and may impair our ability to acquire other companies by
using common stock as consideration.
You may have difficulty trading and obtaining quotations for our common stock.
Our common stock is not actively traded, and the bid and asked prices for our common stock on the OTCQB Market may fluctuate widely. As a result,
investors may find it difficult to dispose of, or to obtain accurate quotations of the price of, our securities. This severely limits the liquidity of the common stock,
and would likely reduce the market price of our common stock and hamper our ability to raise additional capital.
Our common stock is not currently traded at high volume, and you may be unable to sell at or near ask prices or at all if you need to sell or liquidate a
substantial number of shares at one time.
Our common stock is currently traded, but with very low, if any, volume, based on quotations on the OTCQB Market, meaning that the number of
persons interested in purchasing our common stock at or near bid prices at any given time may be relatively small or non-existent. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, no trading occurred in our common stock. The first shares traded on February 21, 2017, with an average number of shares traded between
February 21, 2017 and March 22, 2017 of 486 shares per trading day. This situation is attributable to a number of factors, including the fact that we are a small
company which is still relatively unknown to stock analysts, stock brokers, institutional investors and others in the investment community that generate or
influence sales volume, and that even if we came to the attention of such persons, they tend to be risk-averse and would be reluctant to follow an unproven
company such as ours or purchase or recommend the purchase of our shares until such time as we became more seasoned and viable. As a consequence, there may
be periods of several days or more when trading activity in our shares is minimal or non-existent, as compared to a seasoned issuer which has a large and steady
volume of trading activity that will generally support continuous sales without an adverse effect on share price. We cannot give you any assurance that a broader or
more active public trading market for our common stock will develop or be sustained, or that trading levels will be sustained.
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Shareholders should be aware that, according to Commission Release No. 34-29093, the market for “penny stocks” has suffered in recent years from
patterns of fraud and abuse. Such patterns include (1) control of the market for the security by one or a few broker-dealers that are often related to the promoter or
issuer; (2) manipulation of prices through prearranged matching of purchases and sales and false and misleading press releases; (3) boiler room practices involving
high-pressure sales tactics and unrealistic price projections by inexperienced sales persons; (4) excessive and undisclosed bid-ask differential and markups by
selling broker-dealers; and (5) the wholesale dumping of the same securities by promoters and broker-dealers after prices have been manipulated to a desired level,
along with the resulting inevitable collapse of those prices and with consequent investor losses. Our management is aware of the abuses that have occurred
historically in the penny stock market. Although we do not expect to be in a position to dictate the behavior of the market or of broker-dealers who participate in
the market, management will strive within the confines of practical limitations to prevent the described patterns from being established with respect to our
securities. The occurrence of these patterns or practices could increase the future volatility of our share price.
The market price of our common stock may, and is likely to continue to be, highly volatile and subject to wide fluctuations.
The market price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to a number of factors that are
beyond our control, including:
●

dilution caused by our issuance of additional shares of common stock and other forms of equity securities, which we expect to make in connection
with future capital financings to fund our operations and growth, to attract and retain valuable personnel and in connection with future strategic
partnerships or acquisitions of other companies;

●

quarterly variations in our revenues and operating expenses;

●

changes in the valuation of similarly situated companies, both in our industry and in other industries;

●

changes in analysts’ estimates affecting our company, our competitors and/or our industry;

●

changes in the accounting methods used in or otherwise affecting our industry;

●

additions and departures of key personnel;

●

announcements of technological innovations or new technologies or services available to the renewable energy industry;

●

fluctuations in interest rates and the availability of capital in the capital markets; and

●

significant sales of our common stock.

These and other factors are largely beyond our control, and the impact of these risks, singly or in the aggregate, may result in material adverse changes to
the market price of our Common Stock and/or our results of operations and financial condition.
The rights of the holders of common stock may be impaired by the potential issuance of preferred stock.
Our articles of incorporation give our board of directors the right to create new series of preferred stock. As a result, the board of directors may, without
stockholder approval, issue preferred stock with voting, dividend, conversion, liquidation or other rights which could adversely affect the voting power and equity
interest of the holders of common stock. Preferred stock, which could be issued with the right to more than one vote per share, could be utilized as a method of
discouraging, delaying or preventing a change of control. The possible impact on takeover attempts could adversely affect the price of our common stock.
Although we have no present intention to issue any shares of preferred stock or to create a series of preferred stock, we may issue such shares in the future.
Offers or availability for sale of a substantial number of shares of our common stock may cause the price of our common stock to decline.
If our stockholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, including upon the expiration of any lockup periods or the
statutory holding period under Rule 144, or issued upon the conversion of preferred stock, it could create a circumstance commonly referred to as an “overhang”
and in anticipation of which the market price of our common stock could fall. The existence of an overhang, whether or not sales have occurred or are occurring,
also could make more difficult our ability to raise additional financing through the sale of equity or equity-related securities in the future at a time and price that we
deem reasonable or appropriate.
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If we fail to comply with the rules under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 related to accounting controls and procedures, or if we discover material weaknesses
and deficiencies in our internal control and accounting procedures, our stock price could decline significantly and raising capital could be more difficult.
If we fail to comply with the rules under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 related to disclosure controls and procedures, or, if we discover material
weaknesses and other deficiencies in our internal control and accounting procedures, our stock price could decline significantly and raising capital could be more
difficult. Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. If
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies are discovered or if we otherwise fail to achieve and maintain the adequacy of our internal control, we may not be
able to ensure that we can conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal controls over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Moreover, effective internal controls are necessary for us to produce reliable financial reports and are important to helping prevent financial
fraud. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our business and operating results could be harmed, investors could lose confidence in our
reported financial information, and the trading price of our common stock could drop significantly.
Our common stock is subject to the “Penny Stock” rules of the SEC and the trading market in our securities will be limited, which makes transactions in our
common stock cumbersome and may reduce the value of an investment in our common stock.
Rule 15g-9 under the Exchange Act establishes the definition of a “penny stock,” for the purposes relevant to us, as any equity security that has a market
price of less than $5.00 per share or with an exercise price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. For any transaction involving a penny stock,
unless exempt, the rules require: (a) that a broker or dealer approve a person’s account for transactions in penny stocks; and (b) the broker or dealer receive from
the investor a written agreement to the transaction, setting forth the identity and quantity of the penny stock to be purchased.
In order to approve a person’s account for transactions in penny stocks, the broker or dealer must: (a) obtain financial information and investment
experience objectives of the person and (b) make a reasonable determination that the transactions in penny stocks are suitable for that person and the person has
sufficient knowledge and experience in financial matters to be capable of evaluating the risks of transactions in penny stocks.
The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior to any transaction in a penny stock, a disclosure schedule prescribed by the SEC relating to the penny stock
market, which, in highlight form: (a) sets forth the basis on which the broker or dealer made the suitability determination; and (b) confirms that the broker or dealer
received a signed, written agreement from the investor prior to the transaction. Generally, brokers may be less willing to execute transactions in securities subject
to the “penny stock” rules. This may make it more difficult for investors to dispose of our common stock and cause a decline in the market value of our common
stock.
Disclosure also has to be made about the risks of investing in penny stocks in both public offerings and in secondary trading and about the commissions
payable to both the broker or dealer and the registered representative, current quotations for the securities and the rights and remedies available to an investor in
cases of fraud in penny stock transactions. Finally, monthly statements have to be sent disclosing recent price information for the penny stock held in the account
and information on the limited market in penny stocks.
FINRA sales practice requirements may also limit a shareholder’s ability to buy and sell our stock.
In addition to the “penny stock” rules described above, FINRA has adopted rules that require that in recommending an investment to a customer, a
broker-dealer must have reasonable grounds for believing that the investment is suitable for that customer. Prior to recommending speculative low priced securities
to their non-institutional customers, broker-dealers must make reasonable efforts to obtain information about the customer’s financial status, tax status, investment
objectives and other information. Under interpretations of these rules, FINRA believes that there is a high probability that speculative low priced securities will not
be suitable for at least some customers. The FINRA requirements make it more difficult for broker-dealers to recommend that their customers buy our common
stock, which may limit your ability to buy and sell our stock and have an adverse effect on the market for our shares.
ITEM 1B – UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not required under Regulation S-K for “smaller reporting companies.”
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ITEM 2 – PROPERTIES
We maintain our principal office at 97 River Road, Flemington, NJ 08822. Our telephone number at that office is (908) 837-9097. Our current office
space consists of approximately 800 square feet, which is donated to us from one of our executive officers. There is no lease agreement and we pay no rent.
We believe that our existing facilities are suitable and adequate to meet our current business requirements. We maintain various websites and the
information contained on those websites is not deemed to be a part of this annual report.
ITEM 3 - LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation
is subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business. We are currently not
aware of any such legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition or operating results.
ITEM 4 – MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5 - MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES
Price Range of Common Stock
Our common stock has been available for quotation on the OTCQB Markets under the symbol “HCCC” since November 21, 2016. However, no public
sales took place during the year ended December 31, 2016, as the first sales of our common stock were on February 21, 2017.
On March 22, 2017, the closing sale price of our common stock, as reported by the OTC Markets, was $1.50 per share. On March 22, 2017, there were 58
holders of record of our common stock. Because certain of our shares of common stock are held by brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are
unable to estimate the total number of stockholders represented by these record holders.
Dividend Policy
We have never paid any cash dividends on our capital stock and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain future earnings to fund ongoing operations and future capital requirements of our business. Any future determination to pay cash
dividends will be at the discretion of the Board and will be dependent upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements and such other
factors as the Board deems relevant.
Equity Compensation Information
The following table summarizes information about our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2016.

Plan Category
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders
Equity compensation plans not approved by
stockholders
Total

Number of Shares
of Common Stock
to be Issued
upon Exercise
of Outstanding
Options
(a)
1,000,000

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
We did not purchase any of our registered securities during the period covered by this Annual Report.

Not required under Regulation S-K for “smaller reporting companies.”
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—
0.01

—
1,500,000

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options
(b)

—
1,000,000

ITEM 6 – SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

0.01

Number of Options
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under
Equity Compensation Plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))
(c)
1,500,000

ITEM 7 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations includes a number of forward-looking statements that
reflect Management’s current views with respect to future events and financial performance. You can identify these statements by forward-looking words such as
“may” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate” and “continue,” or similar words. Those statements include statements regarding the intent, belief
or current expectations of us and members of its management team as well as the assumptions on which such statements are based. Prospective investors are
cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risk and uncertainties, and that actual results may differ
materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking statements.
Readers are urged to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made by us in this report and in our other reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Important factors known to us could cause actual results to differ materially from those in forward-looking statements. We undertake no
obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes in the future
operating results over time. We believe that its assumptions are based upon reasonable data derived from and known about our business and operations and the
business and operations of the Company. No assurances are made that actual results of operations or the results of our future activities will not differ materially
from its assumptions. Factors that could cause differences include, but are not limited to, expected market demand for the Company’s services, fluctuations in
pricing for materials, and competition.
Business Overview
We were formed in August 2015 to expand upon the successful implementation of a solar hydrogen energy system used to completely power a residence
or commercial property with clean energy so that it can run independent of the utility grid and also provide energy to the utility grid for monetary credits. This
unique system uses renewal energy as its source for hydrogen production. We believe that it is a revolutionary green-energy concept that is safe, renewable, selfsustaining and cost effective.
There are great benefits to hydrogen energy. The use of hydrogen as a fuel produces no carbon dioxide or other greenhouse gases. Unlike fossil fuels, the
only emissions from hydrogen fuel are chemically pure water and oxygen. Hydrogen can be extracted from water using renewable energy from the sun and unlike
batteries, hydrogen energy can be stored indefinitely. There is no drilling, fracking or mining required to produce hydrogen energy. We believe it is safe and
efficient, and the cleanest energy source on the planet.
We have succeeded in developing a hydrogen energy system designed to create electricity that is generated by renewable solar energy. We call the solar
hydrogen energy system the HC-1. The HC-1 system functions as a self-sustaining renewable energy system. It can be configured as an off grid solution for all
your electricity needs or it can be connected to the grid to generate energy credits. Its production of hydrogen is truly eco-friendly, as it is not produced by the use
of fossil fuels. It is a system comprised of solar modules, inverters, batteries, a hydrogen generator, a fuel cell and a hydrogen storage tank.
When there is solar power, the solar modules produce renewable energy that is collected through a solar inverter, which charges a bank of batteries
through a battery inverter. After the batteries are fully charged, the excess electricity is then combined with water through a hydrogen generator that extracts the
hydrogen from the water in a gasified state, which is safely transferred to the hydrogen tank and stored for later use. If the tank is full, excess electricity is sent
from the batteries through the battery inverter to the utility grid, which results in energy credits for the system owner.
The HC-1 system is connected to the residential or commercial property through the inverters. The electricity is always provided by the charged batteries.
If there is no solar power to charge the batteries, the system keeps the batteries fully charged by using hydrogen stored in the tank, which processed through a fuel
cell, creates the electricity. As the system is able to produce hydrogen, that keeps the hydrogen tank full, it provides a continuous supply of clean energy and
sustainability that is independent from the grid.
Each HC-1 system is custom designed to accommodate the electrical loads for an end user. The system is completely scalable. Typically, one HC-1
standard system configuration with a solar modules and a large tank for hydrogen storage can provide 40 kWh per day, which is the average amount of electricity
utilized by homes in the U.S. If the customer is connected to the electric grid, energy production that is converted to hydrogen in excess of the amount stored in the
hydrogen tank is transferred to the local electric company, creating energy credits, where applicable.
If a customer wishes to connect our system to the electrical grid in order to generate renewable energy credits, the customer needs to obtain
interconnection agreements from the applicable local primary electricity utility. In our experience, there has not been any cost involved in obtaining an
interconnection agreement, but as the requirements are determined on a local basis, it may be possible that some nominal costs are involved in connection with the
process. If the customer obtains an interconnection agreement, once the HC-1 system is operational, the HC-1 system end user can eliminate their electric bill and,
if in a permissible state, can begin generating SRECs. In certain states, an end user receives one SREC for each 1,000 kWh produced through renewal energy. The
customer sells these SRECs to a broker who in turn sells the credits to a utility company so that the utility company can demonstrate their compliance with the
regulatory obligations to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The price per SREC can vary depending on supply and demand, but on average, SRECs sells for $250.
Many other states that may not offer an SREC program, do offer other cash incentives for renewable energy systems.
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Current Operating Trends
Currently, our employees are licensed to install our HC-1 systems in the State of New Jersey. We intend to aggressively grow our business, both
organically and through strategic acquisitions. We intend to acquire companies with licensed contractors in various states and regions, which will allow us to
expand the territories in which we can install our systems. These acquired companies will also provide us with a consistent revenue stream, a customer base for
marketing our HC-1 systems and technicians. Initially, we intend to focus on states or countries whose government supports a regulatory standard requiring its
utility companies to increase their production of energy from renewable energy sources. These governments have established various incentives and financial
mechanisms to accelerate and promote the use of renewable energy sources. Currently, many states comply with regulatory standards including New Jersey,
Massachusetts, Pennsylvania, Maryland, Ohio, Delaware, North Carolina, Virginia, Kentucky, West Virginia, Michigan, Indiana, Illinois as well as the District of
Columbia. In addition, countries such as the United Kingdom, Australia, Italy, Poland, Sweden, Belgium and Chile have adopted regulatory standards. The list is
expanding each year.
We are also searching for suitable acquisition targets that will complement our services, create revenue production, allow us to expand our sales and
technical staff and provide us with a larger customer base to pursue with greater geographic coverage. As of the date of this annual report, we have no written
agreements or understandings to acquire any companies and no assurances can be given that we will identify or successfully acquire any other companies.
Results of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 and the period August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015
Revenue and Cost of Revenue
We had $20,927 of revenue and $20,509 for cost of revenue during the year ended December 31, 2016. This was related to our current projects backlog.
We had no revenue or cost of revenue for the period August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015.
General and Administrative Expenses
During the year ended December 31, 2016, our general and administrative expenses were $476,833. We granted an aggregate of 1,000,000 options to
purchase our common stock in connection with the services rendered, at the exercise price of $0.01 per share vesting immediately, for a term of five years, and
having a fair value of $387,450. Research and development expenses were $2,000 for improvements to our HC-1 system. Professional fees of $33,064 consisted of
legal and accounting fees incurred for our monthly legal retainer and audit related expenses. Consulting/dues and subscription fees were $31,457, which pertained
to EDGAR fees, an application fee to the OTC Markets, Inc., a fee to become DTC eligible, along with miscellaneous annual business subscriptions and renewals.
We incurred $21,684 of travel and entertainment, business meals, investor relations and promotional expenses related to potential customer site visits, as well as a
promotional Earth Day Texas event in Dallas, Texas. Other expenses amounted to $3,178
During the period August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015, our general and administrative expenses were $3,420. Research and
development expenses were $2,400 for improvements to our HC-1 system.
Net Loss
As a result of the foregoing, we had net losses of $478,415 and $5,820 for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the period August 17, 2015 (date of
inception) to December 31, 2015, respectively.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of December 31, 2016, we had working capital of $292,616, comprised primarily of $292,887 of cash and cash equivalents and $13,329 of prepaid
expenses, offset by $7,847 of billings in excess of costs and $6,000 in accounts payable and accrued expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2016, we used
$92,494 of cash in operating activities, which represented our net loss of $478,415 and $3,600 of changes in accounts payable and accrued expenses, $7,847 of
billings in excess of costs, offset by $387,450 of stock-based compensation, $13,329 of changes in prepaid expenses, $247 of costs in excess of billings and $600
of depreciation. For the year ended December 31, 2016, we had $336,181 of net cash provided by financing activities, which represented $450,000 of proceeds
through the sale of shares of common stock, offset by $108,399 for the cost of raising capital and $5,420 due to stockholders. We did not have any cash used in
investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2016.
Cash used in operations for the period August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015 was $3,420, which represented our net loss of $5,820,
which was offset by $2,400 of changes in accounts payable and accrued expenses. For the period August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015, we
had cash from financing activities of $55,620 from the sale of shares of common stock and amounts due to stockholders. We did not have any cash used in
investing activities for the period August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015.
We expect to incur expenses related to compliance for being a public company and travel related to visiting potential customer sites. We expect that our
general and administrative expenses will increase in the future as we expand our business development, add infrastructure and incur additional costs related to
being a public company, including incremental audit fees, investor relations programs and increased professional services.
Our future capital requirements will depend on a number of factors, including the progress of our sales and marketing of our services, the timing and
outcome of potential acquisitions, the costs involved in operating as a public reporting company, the status of competitive services, the availability of financing and
our success in developing markets for our services. When we enter into contacts with customers, they will be required to make payments in tranches, including a
payment after a contract is executed but prior to commencement of the project.
We presently do not have any available credit, bank financing or other external sources of liquidity. Due to our brief history and historical operating
losses, our operations have not been a source of liquidity. We may need to obtain additional capital in order to expand operations and fund our activities. Future
financing may include the issuance of equity or debt securities, obtaining credit facilities, or other financing mechanisms. Even if we are able to raise the funds if
required, it is possible that we could incur unexpected costs and expenses, fail to collect significant amounts owed to us, or experience unexpected cash
requirements that would force us to seek alternative financing. Furthermore, if we issue additional equity or debt securities, stockholders may experience additional
dilution or the new equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of existing holders of our common stock. If additional financing is
not available or is not available on acceptable terms, we may be required to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate our marketing and business development
services.
2015 Private Placement
On December 29, 2015, we sold 105,263 shares of common stock to one accredited investor for gross proceeds of $50,000.
February 2016 Private Placement
Effective February 4, 2016, we sold 526,316 shares of common stock to one accredited investor for gross proceeds of $200,000.
June 2016 Private Placement
Effective June 16, 2016, we sold 500,000 shares of common stock to 52 accredited investors for gross proceeds of $250,000.
Critical Accounting Policies
Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect our reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments, including those related to accrued expenses and stock-based
compensation. We based our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in bank and money market funds as well as other highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less.
Website Development Costs
In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 350, Website Development Costs,
website development is segregated into three stages or activities. During the initial, or planning stage, all related costs are expensed as incurred. The second phase
is the development of the site, which include costs incurred for web application and infrastructure, as well as graphics development. Costs incurred during the
second phase are capitalized and then amortized when the website is ready for its intended use. Stage three consists of costs incurred for post-implementation work,
such as security, training and administration. Such costs incurred during this phase are expensed as incurred. Expenditures for additional upgrades and features
once the website is launched are capitalized if the upgrades and enhancements furnish additional functionality; otherwise, such costs are expensed as incurred.
Website development costs which have been capitalized will be amortized, using the straight-line method, over an estimated useful life of five years,
commencing when the site is launched.
Revenue Recognition
Revenues from construction contracts are included in contract revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and are recognized under the
percentage-of-completion accounting method. The percent complete is measured by the cost incurred to date compared to the estimated total cost of each project.
This method is used as management considers expended cost to be the best available measure of progress on these contracts, the majority of which are completed
within one year, but may occasionally extend beyond one year. Inherent uncertainties in estimating costs make it at least reasonably possible that the estimates used
will change within the near term and over the life of the contracts.
Contract costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance and completion. Provisions for estimated
losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. General and administrative costs are charged to expense as incurred.
Changes in job performance, job conditions and estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penalty provisions and final contract
settlements, may result in revisions to costs and income. Such revisions are recognized in the period in which they are determined.
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings are comprised principally of revenue recognized on contracts (on the percentage-of-completion method)
for which billings had not been presented to customers because the amounts were not billable under the contract terms at the balance sheet date. In accordance with
the contract terms, any unbilled receivables at period end will be billed subsequently. Amounts are billed based on contractual terms. Billings in excess of costs and
estimated earnings represent billings in excess of revenues recognized.
Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. These costs consist primarily of consulting fees, salaries and direct payroll related costs.
Stock-Based Compensation
We measure the cost of services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the fair value of the award. For employees and
directors, the fair value of the award is measured on the grant date and for non-employees, the fair value of the award is generally re-measured on vesting dates and
interim financial reporting dates until the service period is complete. The fair value amount is then recognized over the period during which services are required to
be provided in exchange for the award, usually the vesting period.
As of December 31, 2016, we had 1,000,000 options outstanding to purchase shares of common stock, of which all were vested. Subsequent to December
31, 2016, the options were amended to provide for various vesting schedules, none of which have vested as of the date of this annual report.
As of December 31, 2015, we had -0- options outstanding to purchase shares of common stock.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2014 the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12 (Topic 718) Stock Compensation : Accounting for Share-Based Payments when the terms of an award
provide that a performance target could be achieved after the requisite service period. The amendment for accounting for share based payments, when an award
provides that a performance target that affects vesting could be achieved after an employee completes the requisite service period shall be accounted for as a
performance condition. The performance target shall not be reflected in estimating the fair value of the award at the grant date, and compensation cost shall be
recognized in the period in which it becomes probable that the performance target will be achieved and will represent the compensation cost attributable to the
period(s) for which the requisite service has already been rendered. If the performance target becomes probable of being achieved before the end of the requisite
service period, the remaining unrecognized compensation cost shall be recognized prospectively over the remaining requisite service period. The total amount of
compensation cost recognized during and after the requisite service period shall reflect the number of awards that are expected to vest and shall be adjusted to
reflect the awards that ultimately vest. We do not believe the accounting standards currently adopted will have a material effect on the accompanying condensed
financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Topic 606). This ASU provides guidance for revenue
recognition and affects any entity that either enters into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of
nonfinancial assets and supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605, “Revenue Recognition,” and most industry specific guidance. The
standard’s core principle is the recognition of revenue when a company transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In doing so, companies will need to use more judgment and make more
estimates than under the current guidance. These may include identifying performance obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration
to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate performance obligation. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14,
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date, which deferred the effective date of ASU 2014-09 to fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. Early adoption is permitted for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2016. We have begun a limited evaluation of the provisions of ASU 2014-09 and the impact, if any, it may have on our financial position and results of operations.
As of December 31, 2016 management has deemed the impact as immaterial.
ITEM 7A – QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Not required under Regulation S-K for “smaller reporting companies.”
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of H/Cell Energy Corporation
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of H/Cell Energy Corporation as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the period from August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015. H/Cell
Energy Corporation’s management is responsible for these financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of H/Cell Energy Corporation as of December
31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the period from August 17, 2015 (date of
inception) to December 31, 2015, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
/s/ Rosenberg Rich Baker Berman & Company
Somerset, New Jersey
March 24, 2017
F- 2

H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND DECEMBER 31, 2015
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

Prepaid Expenses
Costs in Excess of Billings
Total Current Assets
Other Assets, Website Development Costs
TOTAL ASSETS

292,887

$

49,200

13,329
247

-

306,463

49,200

2,400

3,000

$

308,863

$

52,200

$

6,000
7,847
-

$

2,400
5,420

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Billings in Excess of Costs
Due to Stockholders
Total Current Liabilities

13,847

7,820

313

211

Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock - $0.0001 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized;
3,131,579 and 2,105,263 shares issued and outstanding
as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively
Preferred Stock - $0.0001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized;
0 shares issued and outstanding
Paid-in-Capital
Retained Earnings
Total Stockholders’ Equity

778,938
(484,235)
295,016

TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

$

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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308,863

49,989
(5,820)
44,380
$

52,200

H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
AND AUGUST 17, 2015 (DATE OF INCEPTION) TO DECEMBER 31, 2015
August 17, 2015
(date of inception) to
December 31, 2015

Year Ended
December 31, 2016
Revenue
Contracts
Related Party

$

8,553
12,374

$

-

Total Revenue

20,927

-

Cost of Goods Sold
Contracts
Related Party

9,882
10,627

-

Total Cost of Goods Sold

20,509

-

Gross Profit

$

418

$

-

Operating Expenses
Research and Development
General and Administrative Expenses

2,000
476,833

2,400
3,420

Total Operating Expenses

478,833

5,820

Loss from Operations
Income Tax Provision (Benefit)

$

(478,415)
-

$

(5,820)
-

Net Loss

$

(478,415)

$

(5,820)

Loss Per Share
Basic

$

(0.17)

$

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding
Basic

2,853,785
See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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-

2,001,548

H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND AUGUST 17, 2015 (DATE OF INCEPTION) TO DECEMBER 31, 2015
Common Stock
Number of
Shares
Amount
Beginning, August 17, 2015 (Date of
Inception)
Issuance of Common Stock August 2016
Issuance of Common Stock December 2016
Net Loss
Ending, December 31, 2015
Issuance of Common Stock February 2016
Stock Based Compensation March 2016
Issuance of Common Stock June 2016
Net Loss

2,000,000
105,263
2,105,263
526,316
500,000
-

$

Ending, December 31, 2016

3,131,579

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

$

$

-

49,989
$ 49,989
199,948
387,450
141,551
-

-

$ 778,938

Preferred Stock
Number of
Shares
Amount

-

$

200
11
211
52
50
-

$

313

-

-

$

$

$

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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-

-

Total
Stockholders’
Equity

$

$
$
$
$
$

(5,820)
(5,820) $
- $
(478,415)

200
50,000
(5,820)
44,380
200,000
387,450
141,601
(478,415)

$

(484,235) $

295,016

H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
AND AUGUST 17, 2015 (DATE OF INCEPTION) TO DECEMBER 31, 2015
August 17, 2015
(date of inception) to
December 31, 2015

Year Ended
December 31, 2016
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Loss
Amoritization
Stock Based Compensation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Prepaid Expenses
Costs in Excess of Billings
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Billings in Excess of Costs

$

Net Cash used in Operating Activities

(478,415)
600
387,450

$

(5,820)
-

(13,329)
(247)
3,600
7,847

2,400

(92,494)

(3,420)

Net Cash used in Investing Activities
Payment of Website Development Costs

-

(3,000)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issuance of Common Stock, Net
Due to Stockholders

341,601
(5,420)

50,200
5,420

Net Cash provided by Financing Activities

336,181

55,620

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

243,687

49,200

49,200

-

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

$
See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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292,887

$

49,200

H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
1.

ORGANIZATION AND LINE OF BUSINESS
H/Cell Energy Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in the state of Nevada on August 17, 2015. The Company, based in Flemington, N.J., is a
start-up company whose principal operations consist of designing and installing hydrogen energy systems. Effective January 31, 2017, the Company
acquired The Pride Group (QLD) Pty Ltd, an Australian company (“Pride”) (see Note 8). Founded in 1997, Pride is a provider of security systems
integration for a variety of customers in the government and commercial sector and has launched a new clean energy systems division to focus on the high
growth renewable energy market in Asia-Pacific.
The Company has developed a hydrogen energy system for residential and commercial use designed to create electricity. This unique system uses
renewable energy as its source for hydrogen production. It functions as a self-sustaining clean energy system. It can be configured as an off grid solution for
all electricity needs or it can be connected to the grid to generate energy credits. Its production of hydrogen is truly eco-friendly, as it is not produced by the
use of fossil fuels. It is a revolutionary green-energy concept that is safe, renewable, self-sustaining and cost effective.

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”).
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable in the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
Revenue Recognition
Revenues and related costs on construction contracts are recognized using the “percentage of completion method” of accounting in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 605-35, Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type
and Certain Production Type Contracts . Under this method, contract revenues and related expenses are recognized over the performance period of the
contract in direct proportion to the costs incurred as a percentage of total estimated costs for the entirety of the contract. Costs include direct material, direct
labor, subcontract labor and any allocable indirect costs. All un-allocable indirect costs and corporate general and administrative costs are charged to the
periods as incurred.
Revisions in cost and profit estimates during the course of the contract are reflected in the accounting period in which the facts, which require the revision,
become known. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. Changes in job
performance, job conditions, and estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penalty provisions, and final contract settlements may result
in revisions to costs and income and are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in bank and money market funds as well as other highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less. The Company had no cash equivalents as of December 31, 2016. At times during the year ended December 31, 2016, balances exceeded the
FDIC insurance limit of $250,000.
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H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
Website Development Costs
In accordance with FASB ASC 350, Website Development Costs , website development is segregated into three stages or activities. During the initial, or
planning stage, all related costs are expensed as incurred. The second phase is the development of the site, which include costs incurred for web application
and infrastructure, as well as graphics development. Costs incurred during the second phase are capitalized and then amortized when the website is ready
for its intended use. Stage three consists of costs incurred for post-implementation work, such as security, training and administration. Such costs incurred
during this phase are expensed as incurred. Expenditures for additional upgrades and features once the website is launched are capitalized if the upgrades
and enhancements furnish additional functionality; otherwise, such costs are expensed as incurred.
Website development costs which have been capitalized and are being amortized, using the straight-line method, over an estimated useful life of five years.
The site launched in January of 2016.
Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. These costs consist primarily of consulting fees, salaries and direct payroll related costs.
Stock-Based Employee Compensation
The Company recognizes expense for its stock-based compensation based on the fair value of the awards at the time they are granted. We estimate the value
of stock option awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model. The determination of the fair value of stock-based payment awards on the date
of grant is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of complex and subjective variables. These variables include our expected
stock price volatility over the term of the awards, expected term, risk-free interest rate, expected dividends and expected forfeiture rates. The forfeiture rate
is estimated using historical option cancellation information, adjusted for anticipated changes in expected exercise and employment termination behavior.
Our outstanding awards do not contain market or performance conditions and all options were granted for past services.
Income Taxes
The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes pursuant to FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes . Under this method, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets, including tax loss and credit carryforwards, and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred income
tax expense represents the change during the period in the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. The components of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities are individually classified as current and non-current based on their characteristics. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when
it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
The determination of the Company’s provision for income taxes requires significant judgment, the use of estimates, and the interpretation and application of
complex tax laws. Significant judgment is required in assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items and the probability of sustaining
uncertain tax positions. The benefits of uncertain tax positions are recorded in the Company’s financial statements only after determining a more-likelythan-not probability that the uncertain tax positions will withstand challenge, if any, from taxing authorities. When facts and circumstances change, the
Company reassesses these probabilities and records any changes in the financial statements as appropriate. Accrued interest and penalties related to income
tax matters are classified as a component of income tax expense.
The Company recognizes and measures its unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with FASB ASC 740. Under that guidance, management assesses the
likelihood that tax positions will be sustained upon examination based on the facts, circumstances and information, including the technical merits of those
positions, available at the end of each period. The measurement of unrecognized tax benefits is adjusted when new information is available, or when an
event occurs that requires a change.
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H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
The Company did not identify any material uncertain tax positions. The Company did not recognize any interest or penalties for unrecognized tax benefits.
The federal income tax returns of the Company are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for the three years after they are filed. The Company’s
2015 and 2016 are still open for examination by the taxing authorities. There was no provision for income taxes for the twelve months ended December 31,
2016.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and short-term borrowings, as reflected in the balance sheets,
approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments. All other significant financial assets, financial liabilities and equity
instruments of the Company are either recognized or disclosed in the financial statements together with other information relevant for making a reasonable
assessment of future cash flows, interest rate risk and credit risk. Where practicable the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities have been
determined and disclosed; otherwise only available information pertinent to fair value has been disclosed.
Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share
The Company computes basic net income (loss) per share by dividing net income (loss) per share available to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period and excludes the effects of any potentially dilutive securities. Diluted earnings per share, if
presented, would include the dilution that would occur upon the exercise or conversion of all potentially dilutive securities into common stock using the
“treasury stock” and/or “if converted” methods as applicable. The computation of basic and diluted loss per share excludes potentially dilutive securities
because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. Potentially-dilutive securities excluded from the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the
year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:
December 31, 2016
Options to purchase common stock
Totals
3.

1,000,000
1,000,000

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company’s current office space consists of approximately 800 square feet, which is donated to it from one of its executive officers. There is no lease
agreement and the Company pays no rent.
Effective February 4, 2016, the Company sold 526,316 shares of common stock to Reza Enterprises, Inc., an entity beneficially owned by Rezaul Karim. In
connection with, and as a condition of closing, the Company agreed to appoint Rezaul Karim to its Board.
In June 2016, the Company entered into a contract with Rezaul Karim, one of its directors, for the installation of an HC-1 system. As a result of recent
project changes by the customer, the system installation is expected to commence in spring 2017. Revised permits were submitted in October 2016. The
project has been pushed back due to design changes from being ground mount solar to a solar carport requested by the customer. The Company intends to
subcontract the installation of the system to Renewable Energy Holdings LLC (“REH”), a company owned by Mike Strizki, one of the Company’s
executive officers. James Strizki, one of the Company’s executive officers and director, is vice president of operations at REH. Total related party revenue
and cost of revenue was $12,734 and $10,627, respectively, during the year ended December 31, 2016.
The Company has entered into agreements to indemnify its directors and executive officers, in addition to the indemnification provided for in the
Company’s articles of incorporation and bylaws. These agreements, among other things, provide for indemnification of the Company’s directors and
executive officers for certain expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred by any such person in any action or
proceeding, including any action by or in the right of the Company, arising out of such person’s services as a director or executive officer of the Company,
any subsidiary of the Company or any other company or enterprise to which the person provided services at the Company’s request. The Company believes
that these provisions and agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors and executive officers.
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H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
On November 17, 2016, the Company entered into a non-binding letter of intent to purchase The Pride Group (QLD) Pty Ltd, an Australian company
(“Pride”). Pride is owned 80% by Turquino Equity, which is owned by Andrew and Matthew Hidalgo, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, respectively. The acquisition of Pride was completed in January 2017 (see Note 8).
4.

STOCK OPTIONS AWARDS AND GRANTS
There is not a viable market for the Company’s common stock to determine its fair value, therefore management is required to estimate the fair value to be
utilized in the determining stock-based compensation costs. In estimating the fair value, management considered recent sales of its common stock to
independent qualified investors. Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate the fair value. Accordingly, actual results could vary
significantly from management’s estimates
On March 10, 2016, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the 2016 Incentive Stock Option Plan (the “2016 Plan”). The Plan provides for the
issuance of options to purchase up to 2,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to officers, directors, employees and consultants of the Company.
Under the terms of the Plan the Company may issue Incentive Stock Options as defined by the Internal Revenue Code to employees of the Company only
and non-statutory options. The Board of Directors of the Company determines the exercise price, vesting and expiration period (not to exceed 10 years) of
the grants under the Plan. However, the exercise price of an Incentive Stock Option should not be less than 110% of fair value of the common stock at the
date of the grant for a 10% or more stockholder and 100% of fair value for a grantee who is not 10% stockholder. The fair value of the common stock is
determined based on quoted market price or in absence of such quoted market price, by the Board of Directors in good faith.
As of December 31, 2016, the Company granted an aggregate of 1,000,000 non-statutory options to a director and key employees.
A summary of the stock option activity and related information for the 2016 Plan from August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2016 is as
follows:
WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

Shares
Outstanding at August 17, 2015 (date of inception)
Grants
Exercised
Canceled
Outstanding at December 31, 2015
Grants
Exercised
Canceled
Outstanding at December 31,2016

1,000,000
1,000,000

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2016
Exercisable at December 31, 2016

1,000,000
1,000,000

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value

$

0.01

5.00

$

385,833

$

0.01

4.19

$

385,833

$
$

0.01
0.01

4.19
4.19

$
$

385,833
385,833

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pretax intrinsic value, based on options with an exercise price less than the
Company’s estimated market stock price of $0.3958 as of December 31, 2016, which would have been received by the option holders had those option
holders exercised their options as of that date.
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H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions. The fair value of stock-based payment awards was estimated using the BlackScholes option model with a volatility figure derived from an index of historical stock prices of comparable entities until sufficient data exists to estimate
the volatility using the Company’s own historical stock prices. Management determined this assumption to be a more accurate indicator of value.
The Company accounts for the expected life of options based on the contractual life of options for non-employees and for non-statutory options granted to
employees. For incentive options granted to employees, the Company accounts for the expected life in accordance with the “simplified” method, which is
used for “plain-vanilla” options, as defined in the accounting standards codification. The risk-free interest rate was determined from the implied yields of
U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds with a remaining life consistent with the expected term of the options. The fair value of stock-based payment awards
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2016 was estimated using the Black-Scholes pricing model.
During the twelve months ended December 31, 2016, the Company granted an aggregate of 1,000,000 options to purchase shares of the Company’s
common stock in connection with the services rendered at the exercise price of $0.01 per share for a term of five years, vesting immediately, and have
approximate fair value of $387,450.
The fair value of the granted options for the twelve months ended December 31, 2016 was determined using the Black Scholes option pricing model with
the following assumptions:
Dividend yield:
Volatility
Risk free rate:
Expected life:
Estimated fair value of the Company’s common stock

$

-0-%
88.44%
1.45%
5 years
0.3958

The following table presents information related to stock options at December 31, 2016:
Options Outstanding

Exercise
Price
$

0.01

Number of
Options
1,000,000

Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Exercisable
Remaining Life
Number of
In Years
Options
4.19
1,000,000

The fair value of all options vesting during the twelve months ended December 31, 2016 of $387,450 was charged to current period operations. As of
December 31, 2016, there was no unrecognized compensation expense.
5.

RESTATED UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL DATA
Adjustments to additional paid in capital balance and retained earnings are related to a previous error not capitalizing legal costs associated with capital
raising activities of the Company.
Adjustments to operating expenses are related to a previous error of expensing legal costs that were incurred during the capital raising activities of the
company.
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H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
For the nine months ended as of September 30, 2016
As Previously
Reported
$
352,066
887,337
(535,484)
352,066

Assets
Liabilities
Paid-in-Capital
Retained Earnings
Total Stockholders’ Equity
Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Income from operations
Other income (expense)
Income before taxes
Tax (expense) benefit
Net income
6.

Adjustments
$

(108,399)
108,399
-

1,500
1,500
529,763
(529,763)

$

(529,763)
(529,763)

(108,399)
108,399
108,399
108,399

$

$

$

As Restated
352,066
778,938
(427,085)
352,066
1,500
1,500
421,364
421,364
421,364
421,364

INCOME TAXES
For the years ended December 31, 2016, and 2015, there was no provision for income taxes, current or deferred.
At December 31, 2016, we have a federal net operating loss carry forward of approximately $41,042 available to offset future taxable income through 2036.
At December 31, 2016, and 2015, we have state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $41,042 available to offset future losses through 2036.
We established valuation allowances equal to the full amount of the deferred tax assets because of the uncertainty of the utilization of the operating losses in
future periods. We periodically assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover the deferred tax assets. We consider all available evidence, both positive
and negative, including historical levels of income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of future taxable income.
Our deferred tax asset and liability as presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements consist of the following:
2016
Deferred Income Tax Assets:
Net operating losses
Total deferred income tax asset
Valuation allowance
Deferred Income Tax Assets, net

$

41,042
41,042
(41,042)
0

$

2015
$

2,328
2,328
(2,328)
0

$

A reconciliation between taxes computed at the federal statutory rate and the consolidated effective tax rate is as follows:
2016
Federal statutory tax rate
State tax rate, net of federal tax benefit
Adjustment in valuation allowances
Stock Based Compensation
Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes
7.

2015
34.0%
6.0%
(12.5)%
(27.5)%
-0-%

34.0%
6.0%
(40.0)%
(0.0)%
-0-%

GOING CONCERN
As reflected in the accompanying financial statements, the Company has a net loss of $478,415 and net cash used in operations of $92,494 for the year
ended December 31, 2016, and cash of $292,887, stockholders’ equity of $295,016 and an accumulated deficit of $484,235 at December 31, 2016. In
addition, the Company is a start up in the renewable energy space and has generated limited revenues to date.
Management has evaluated the significance of these conditions and under these circumstances expects that its current cash resources as well as expected
lack of operating cash flows would not be sufficient to sustain operations for a period greater than one year from this report issuance date. However, due to
the acquisition of Pride, management believes that the substantial doubt is alleviated.
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H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of
liabilities in the normal course of business. These financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recovery of the recorded assets or the
classification of the liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
8.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In accordance with FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, the Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 24, 2017, the date on which these
financial statements were available to be issued.
On January 31, 2017, the Company acquired Pride. The Company issued an aggregate of 3,800,000 shares (the “Acquisition Shares”) to the shareholders of
Pride to acquire 100% of the total outstanding capital stock of Pride. 10% of the Acquisition Shares, or 380,000 shares, were held in escrow pending the
Company conducting an assessment of the net tangible asset value (the “NTAV”) of Pride as of the closing date. The Company had 90 days to complete the
NTAV calculation, and if the NTAV is less than AUD $200,000, then the Pride shareholders were required to pay the Company the amount of the shortfall
through the return to the Company of such number of Acquisition Shares equal to the shortfall divided by $0.50. If the NTAV was greater than AUD
$300,000, the Company would have issued the Pride shareholders such number of additional Acquisition Shares equal to the excess divided by $0.50. On
February 22, 2017, the Company and the Pride shareholders agreed to the NTAV, which was between AUD $200,000 and AUD $300,000, and the
remaining shares were released from escrow and delivered to the Pride shareholders.
On March 10, 2017, the Company entered into amendment agreements (the “Amendments”) with employees and directors who received an aggregate of 1
million stock option grants in March 2016 (the “Granted Options”). All of the Granted Options had vested at the time of issuance. The Amendments
provided for vesting schedules of the Granted Options, with the Granted Options now vesting as follows:
Number of Granted Options
100,000
100,000
50,000
375,000
375,000

Vesting Date
April 1, 2017
April 1, 2018
June 1, 2018
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2020
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ITEM 9 - CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
None.
ITEM 9A – CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that
any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In
addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that management is required to apply its
judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs.
Based on management’s evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as a result of the material weaknesses
described below, our disclosure controls and procedures are not designed at a reasonable assurance level and are ineffective to provide reasonable assurance that
information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time
periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer
and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. The material weaknesses, which relate to internal control over
financial reporting, that were identified are:
a)

Due to our small size, we did not have sufficient personnel in our accounting and financial reporting functions. As a result, we were not able to
achieve adequate segregation of duties and were not able to provide for adequate review of the financial statements. This control deficiency,
which is pervasive in nature, results in a reasonable possibility that material misstatements of the consolidated financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis; and

b)

We lacked sufficient written policies and procedures for accounting and financial reporting with respect to the requirements and application of
U.S. GAAP and SEC disclosure requirements.

We are committed to improving our financial organization. As a result of our acquisition of Pride in January 2017, we increased our accounting personnel
and technical accounting expertise within the accounting function, including accounting personnel with experience in U.S. public reporting requirements.
Additional personnel will also ensure the proper segregation of duties and provide more checks and balances within the department. Additional personnel will also
provide the cross training needed to support us if personnel turn over issues within the department occur. We believe this will greatly decrease any control and
procedure issues we may encounter in the future. We currently engage an outside accounting firm to assist us in the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements and anticipate doing so until we have a sufficient number of internal accounting personnel to achieve compliance. As necessary, we will engage
consultants in the future in order to ensure proper accounting for our consolidated financial statements.
In addition, we will create written policies and procedures for accounting and financial reporting with respect to the requirements and application of U.S.
GAAP and SEC disclosure requirements.
Changes in internal control over financial reporting.
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2016 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting.
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for our company. Internal control over
financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act, as a process designed by, or under the supervision of, a
company’s principal executive and principal financial officer and effected by the our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible
enhancements to controls and procedures.
We conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer conclude that, at December 31, 2016, our internal control over financial reporting was not effective for the reasons discussed above.
This annual report does not include an attestation report by Rosenberg Rich Baker Berman & Company, our independent registered public accounting
firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. As a smaller reporting company, our management’s report was not subject to attestation by our registered
public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit us to provide only management’s report in this annual report.
ITEM 9B – OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III
ITEM 10 – DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The names of our executive officers and directors and their age, title, and biography as of March 22, 2017 are set forth below:

Position Held with our Company
Chief Executive Officer, President, Chairman of the Board and Director

Date First Elected
or Appointed
August 17, 2015

34

Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary

August 17, 2015

Mike Strizki

60

Chief Technology Officer

August 17, 2015

James Strizki

33

Executive Vice President of Technical Services and Director

August 17, 2015

Rezaul Karim

60

Director

February 5, 2016

Name
Andrew Hidalgo

Age
60

Matthew Hidalgo

Business Experience
The following is a brief account of the education and business experience of each director and executive officer of our Company, indicating the person’s
principal occupation during that period, and the name and principal business of the organization in which such occupation and employment were carried out.
Andrew Hidalgo – Chief Executive Officer, President, Chairman of the Board and Director.
Andy is responsible for strategic direction, business development and investor relations. Andy has over 25 years of experience in business planning,
operations, mergers, acquisitions, financing, corporate governance and SEC compliance. Andy has been a Managing Partner at Turquino Equity LLC (“Turquino”)
since its formation in August 2013. Turquino is a global investment firm that focuses on private equity investments, mergers and acquisitions. Andy founded
WPCS International Incorporated (“WPCS”), a NASDAQ-listed, design-build engineering services company, and served as Chairman, CEO and President between
November 2001 and July 2013. WPCS raised over $40 million of equity financing and acquired 19 companies on three continents during Andy’s tenure. Andy also
has prior experience included operational and business development roles with 3M, Schlumberger and General Electric, where he was also a member of the
corporate business development committee. Andy’s significant executive leadership experience was instrumental in his selection as a member of the board of
directors.
Mike Strizki – Chief Technology Officer.
Mike is responsible for research and development. Developer of the concept, Mike converted his own home to run on solar-hydrogen power in 2006. This
included a hydrogen vehicle fueling station. The home serves as the flagship prototype for his accomplishments. Mike founded Renewable Energy Holdings LLC,
or REH, a project management firm, in July 2008 and remains its sole managing member. Mike has served as the executive director of the Hydrogen House
Project, a non-profit organization focused on the development of an affordable solar hydrogen energy system for residential and commercial properties, since Mike
founded it in 2003. Between 1983 and 1999, Mike worked for the New Jersey Department of Transportation, where he developed two fuel cell vehicles for the
state. Previously, he has assisted in the development of the Peugeot Fuel Cell Fire Engine and the Duffy Fuel Cell Electric Boat. Mike has obtained several patents
for his prior work, which patents do not relate to our operations.
Matthew Hidalgo – Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary.
Matt is responsible for financial management and operations. Matt has over 10 years of experience in finance, accounting, operations, restructuring and
the integration of acquisitions. Matt has been a Managing Partner at Turquino since its formation in August 2013. Between February 2010 and December 2013, he
was the controller and operations manager for WPCS International – Trenton, Inc., WPCS’ largest subsidiary, managing over $30 million in annual revenue.
Between February 2008 and February 2010, Matt managed accounting functions for several Australian subsidiaries of WPCS. After graduating Pennsylvania State
University with a B.S. in Accounting, he began his career as an accountant for PriceWaterhouse Coopers LLP, where he focused on preparing financial statements
and partnership allocations for hedge funds and private equity firms.
28

James Strizki – Executive Vice President of Technical Services and Director
James is responsible for outlining the project scope, generating quotes, project management, site permits and system implementation. He manages our
technical resources in assuring a high quality and efficient installation that meets the customer’s expectations. After graduating Rutgers University in 2006 with a
degree in Civil Engineering, James worked for the New Jersey Department of Transportation between July 2006 and October 2011 as a project engineer focused on
the structural evaluation of transportation infrastructure. Since October 2011, James has been the vice president of operations of REH, where his responsibilities
encompassed CADD design, solar array layouts and vendor management. James holds a Professional Engineering License and a Home Inspection License. James’
significant experience with our HC-1 system was instrumental in his selection as a member of the board of directors.
Rezaul Karim, Ph.D. – Director
As a director, Dr. Karim provides valuable input in the Company’s business development strategy. Since its founding in September 2014, Dr. Karim has
been the President of Reza Enterprises, Inc., a private investment firm, which has invested in SuperGreen Solutions of Flemington, NJ, a retailer of energy efficient
products and services and Signarama of Flemington, NJ, a supplier of custom-made signs. He has been President of SuperGreen Solutions and Signarama since
July 2015 and January 2015, respectively. Between October 1991 and April 2012, Dr. Karim worked at Johnson & Johnson, where he was last Director of Methods
and Analyses at Janssen Research & Development (2006 through April 2012). Dr. Karim received his BS and MS degrees in statistics from the University of
Dhaka in Bangladesh, his MS in Demography and PhD in Biostatistics from John Hopkins University and his MBA from Fairleigh Dickinson University. Dr.
Karim’s prior experience as a venture capital investor and entrepreneur was instrumental in his selection as a member of our board of directors.
Family Relationships
Matthew Hidalgo is the son of Andrew Hidalgo and James Strizki is the son of Mike Strizki.
Board Independence and Committees
We are not required to have any independent members of the Board of Directors. The board of directors has determined that (i) Andrew Hidalgo and
James Strizki each has a relationship with the company which, in the opinion of the board of directors, would not allow them to be considered as “independent
directors” as defined in the Marketplace Rules of The NASDAQ Stock Market and (ii) Rezaul Karim is an independent director as defined in the Marketplace
Rules of The NASDAQ Stock Market.
As of the date of this annual report, we do not have any active Board committees and the Board as a whole carries out the functions of audit, nominating
and compensation committees. We expect our Board of Directors, in the future, to appoint an audit committee, nominating committee and compensation
committee, and to adopt charters relative to each such committee. We intend to appoint such persons to committees of the Board of Directors as are expected to be
required to meet the corporate governance requirements imposed by a national securities exchange, although we are not required to comply with such requirements
until we elect to seek a listing on a national securities exchange. In addition, we intend that a majority of our directors will be independent directors, of which at
least one director will qualify as an “audit committee financial expert,” within the meaning of Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K, as promulgated by the SEC. We
do not currently have an “audit committee financial expert” since we currently do not have an audit committee in place.
Except as may be provided in our bylaws, we do not currently have specified procedures in place pursuant to which whereby security holders may
recommend nominees to the Board of Directors.
Code of Ethics
We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our directors, officers and employees. A copy of the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics is incorporated by reference as an exhibit.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
During the year ended December 31, 2016, we were governed under Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act. As a result, we were not required to file reports
of executive officers and directors and persons who own more than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Exchange
Act.
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Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
Our Directors and Executive Officers have not been involved in any of the following events during the past ten years:
1.

any bankruptcy petition filed by or against such person or any business of which such person was a general partner or executive officer either at
the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time;

2.

any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other minor
offenses);

3.

being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction,
permanently or temporarily enjoining him from or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, securities or banking activities or
to be associated with any person practicing in banking or securities activities;

4.

being found by a court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action, the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Commodity Futures Trading
Commission to have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated;

5.

being subject of, or a party to, any federal or state judicial or administrative order, judgment decree, or finding, not subsequently reversed,
suspended or vacated, relating to an alleged violation of any federal or state securities or commodities law or regulation, any law or regulation
respecting financial institutions or insurance companies, or any law or regulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud or fraud in connection with any
business entity; or

6.

being subject of or party to any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed, suspended, or vacated, of any self-regulatory organization, any
registered entity or any equivalent exchange, association, entity or organization that has disciplinary authority over its members or persons
associated with a member.

ITEM 11 – EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Executive Officer Compensation
No cash compensation has been paid to any executive officer since inception. It is currently the intention of the Board to start paying cash salaries to
executive officers when we are achieving gross revenue of $4 million, on an annualized, consolidated basis, including from any subsidiaries or companies
acquired. In addition, equity compensation may be granted to executive officers pursuant to the 2016 Plan, at the discretion of the Board.
The following table provides certain summary information concerning compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to our Chief Executive Officer and
one other highest paid individual whose total annual salary and bonus exceeded $100,000 for fiscal years 2016 and 2015.

Name & Principal
Position

Year
2016
2015

Andrew Hidalgo
Chief Executive Officer
Jarrett Husid
Project Manager

-

-

-

Option
Awards
($)
77,490
-

-

-

-

116,235

Salary
($)

2016

Stock
Awards
($)

Bonus
($)

Total ($)
77,490
116,235

Option/SAR Grants in Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016
All Other Option Awards:
Number of Securities
Underlying Options (#)
200,000

$

Exercise or Base Price of
Option Awards ($/Share)
0.01

Grant Date Fair Value of
Stock and Option Awards
($)
$
77,490

Name
Andrew Hidalgo

Grant Date
3/10/2016

Matthew Hidalgo

3/10/2016

200,000

$

0.01

$

77,490

James Strizki

3/10/2016

100,000

$

0.01

$

38,745
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table
The following table sets forth information for the named executive officers regarding the number of shares subject to both exercisable and unexercisable
stock options, as well as the exercise prices and expiration dates thereof, as of December 31, 2016.
Number of
Securities
underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Exercisable (1)

Name

Number of
Securities
underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Unexercisable

Option
Exercise
Price ($/Sh)

Option Expiration Date

Andrew Hidalgo

200,000

-

$

0.01

3/10/2026

Matthew Hidalgo

200,000

-

$

0.01

3/10/2026

James Strizki

100,000

-

$

0.01

3/10/2026

(1) Subsequent to December 31, 2016, the option grant recipients entered into amendments to their option awards to provide for vesting schedules of the
granted options. All of the options are unexercisable as of the date of filing of this annual report.
Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-In-Control Arrangements
We currently do not have any employment agreements with our executive officers.
Director Compensation
The following table sets forth summary information concerning the total compensation paid to our non-employee directors in 2016 for services to our
company.
Option
Awards ($)
$
77,490
$
77,490

Name
Rezaul Karim
Total:
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$
$

Total ($)
77,490
77,490

ITEM 12 – SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 22, 2017:
●

by each person who is known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock;

●

by each of our officers and directors; and

●

by all of our officers and directors as a group.

Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes to the following table, each person named in the table has sole voting and investment power and that person’s
address is c/o H/Cell Energy Corporation, 97 River Road, Flemington, NJ 08822.

NAME OF OWNER
Andrew Hidalgo
Matthew Hidalgo
Mike Strizki
James Strizki
Rezaul Karim
Officers and Directors as a Group (5 persons)
Turquino Equity LLC (6)
Stephen Paul Mullane and Marie Louise Mullane as
Trustees of the Mullane Family Trust
Reza Enterprises, Inc. (7)

TITLE OF
CLASS
Common Stock
Common Stock
Common Stock
Common Stock
Common Stock
Common Stock

NUMBER OF
SHARES OWNED (1)
3,540,000(3)
3,540,000(3)
750,000
750,000
626,316(4)
5,666,316(5)

PERCENTAGE OF
COMMON STOCK (2)
51.00%
51.00%
10.80%
10.80%
8.89%
80.47%

Common Stock

3,540,000

51.00%

Common Stock
Common Stock

760,000
526,316

10.95%
7.58%

(1) Beneficial Ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities.
Shares of common stock subject to options or warrants currently exercisable or convertible, or exercisable or convertible within 60 days of March 22, 2017 are
deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of the person holding such option or warrant but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of
any other person.
(2) Percentage based upon 6,941,579 shares of common stock issued and outstanding as of March 22, 2017.
(3) Represents shares of common stock owned by Turquino Equity LLC. Andrew Hidalgo and Matthew Hidalgo, as Managing Partners of Turquino Equity, have
voting and dispositive power over the shares held by such entity, and are therefore deemed beneficial owners of such shares.
(4) Represents 100,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options that will become exercisable within 60 days and 526,316 shares of
common stock owned by Reza Enterprises, Inc. Rezaul Karim, as Chief Executive Officer of Reza Enterprises, has voting and dispositive power over the shares
held by such entity, and is therefore deemed a beneficial owner of such shares.
(5) Includes 100,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options that will become exercisable within 60 days, 3,540,000 shares of common
stock held by Turquino Equity and 526,316 shares of common stock held by Reza Enterprises.
(6) Andrew Hidalgo and Matthew Hidalgo, as Managing Partners of Turquino Equity, have voting and dispositive power over the shares held by such entity, and
are therefore deemed beneficial owners of such shares.
(7) Rezaul Karim, as Chief Executive Officer of Reza Enterprises, has voting and dispositive power over the shares held by such entity, and is therefore deemed a
beneficial owner of such shares.
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ITEM 13 – CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Other than as disclosed below, since our inception in 2015, there have been no transactions, or proposed transactions, in which our company was or is to
be a participant where the amount involved exceeds the lesser of $120,000 or one percent of the average of our company’s total assets at year-end and in which any
director, executive officer or beneficial holder of more than 5% of the outstanding common, or any of their respective relatives, spouses, associates or affiliates, has
had or will have any direct or material indirect interest. We have no policy regarding entering into transactions with affiliated parties.
Our current office space consists of approximately 800 square feet, which is donated to us from one of our executive officers. There is no lease agreement
and we pay no rent.
Effective February 4, 2016, we sold 526,316 shares of common stock to Reza Enterprises, Inc., an entity beneficially owned by Rezaul Karim. In
connection with, and as a condition of closing, we agreed to appoint Rezaul Karim to our Board.
In June 2016, we entered into a contract with Rezaul Karim, one of our directors, for the installation of an HC-1 system. As a result of recent project
changes by the customer, the system installation commenced in the fourth quarter of 2016, with revised permits submitted in October. We are subcontracting the
installation of the system to REH, a company owned by Mike Strizki, one of our executive officers. James Strizki, one of our executive officers and director, is
vice president of operations at REH. The approximate value of the contract for the system is $60,500 and we expect to pay approximately $59,000 to REH for the
installation of the system.
On January 31, 2017 (the “Closing Date”), we entered into a share exchange agreement (the “Exchange Agreement”) by and among us, The Pride Group
(QLD) Pty Ltd., an Australian corporation (“Pride”), Turquino Equity LLC (“Turquino”) and Stephen Paul Mullane and Marie Louise Mullane as Trustees of the
Mullane Family Trust (the “Mullane Trust” and together with Turquino, the “Pride Shareholders”). Andrew Hidalgo and Matthew Hidalgo, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively, are each a managing partner of Turquino. Turquino has an arrangement with Pride for a monthly management fee
of $20,000 AUD. As of December 31, 2016, Pride owed Turquino $72,500 AUD. As of the date of this filing, Turquino is owed $60,000 AUD.
Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Pride from the Pride Shareholders in exchange for an
aggregate of 3,800,000 shares of our common stock (the “Acquisition Shares”). Turquino received 3,040,000 of the Acquisition Shares.
We have entered into agreements to indemnify our directors and executive officers, in addition to the indemnification provided for in our articles of
incorporation and bylaws. These agreements, among other things, provide for indemnification of our directors and executive officers for certain expenses
(including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred by any such person in any action or proceeding, including any action by or in the
right of our company, arising out of such person’s services as a director or executive officer of ours, any subsidiary of ours or any other company or enterprise to
which the person provided services at our request. We believe that these provisions and agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors
and executive officers.
ITEM 14 – PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
Audit Fees . The aggregate fees billed by our independent auditors, for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements for
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and for the reviews of the financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q during the fiscal
years were $10,500 and $10,000, respectively.
Audit Related Fees . We incurred fees to our independent auditors of $20,500 for audit related fees during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015.
Tax and Other Fees . We incurred fees to our independent auditors of $-0- for tax and fees during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
The Board of Directors has considered whether the provision of non-audit services is compatible with maintaining the principal accountant’s
independence.
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PART IV
ITEM 15 – EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)

List of Documents Filed as a Part of This Report:

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

F-1

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

F-2

Balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2016

F-3

Statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 and August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015

F-4

Statements of stockholders’ equity the year ended December 31, 2016 and August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015

F-5

Statements of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2016 and August 17, 2015 (date of inception) to December 31, 2015

F-6

Notes to financial statements
(b)

F-7 - F-13

Index to Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules have been omitted because the required information is included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto, or is not
applicable or required.
(c)

Index to Exhibits

The Exhibits listed below are identified by numbers corresponding to the Exhibit Table of Item 601 of Regulation S-K. The Exhibits designated by an
asterisk (*) are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed pursuant to Item 15.
Exhibit No.

Description

3.01

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on August 17, 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) on June 29, 2016 and incorporated herein by
reference.

3.02

Certificate of Correction to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on August 18, 2015, filed with
the Nevada Secretary of State on August 18, 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed with the Commission on
June 29, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

3.03

Bylaws of the Company, filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on August 18, 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S1, filed with the Commission on June 29, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.01

Form of Purchase Agreement, dated December 29, 2015, by and between the Company and Pamela A. Weidel Living Trust, filed with the Nevada
Secretary of State on August 18, 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed with the Commission on June 29, 2016
and incorporated herein by reference.

10.02

Form of Purchase Agreement, dated January 14, 2016, by and between the Company and Reza Enterprises, Inc., filed with the Nevada Secretary of
State on August 18, 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed with the Commission on June 29, 2016 and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.03

Form of Subscription Agreement, dated June 16, 2016, by and between the Company and the investors signatory thereto, filed with the Nevada
Secretary of State on August 18, 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed with the Commission on June 29, 2016
and incorporated herein by reference.
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10.04

Form of Indemnification Agreement, filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on August 18, 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement
on Form S-1, filed with the Commission on June 29, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.05 *

2016 Incentive Stock Option Plan, filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on August 18, 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement
on Form S-1, filed with the Commission on June 29, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.06

Form of Share Exchange Agreement, by and among H/Cell Energy Corporation, The Pride Group (QLD) Pty Ltd., Turquino Equity LLC and
Stephen Paul Mullane and Marie Louise Mullane as Trustees of the Mullane Family Trust, dated January 31, 2017, filed as an exhibit to the
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on February 6, 2017 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.07

Form of Escrow Agreement, by and among H/Cell Energy Corporation, Turquino Equity LLC, Stephen Paul Mullane and Marie Louise Mullane
as Trustees of the Mullane Family Trust, and Sichenzia Ross Ference Kesner LLP, dated January 31, 2017, filed as an exhibit to the Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on February 6, 2017 and incorporated herein by reference.

14.01

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Employees, Executive Officers and Directors, filed herewith.

21.01

List of Subsidiaries, filed herewith.

31.01

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.02

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.01

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101

The following materials from H/Cell Energy Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, formatted in
XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES
In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.
H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
Date: March 24, 2017

By:

/s/ ANDREW HIDALGO
Andrew Hidalgo
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 24, 2017

By:

/s/ MATTHEW HIDALGO
Matthew Hidalgo
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Name

Position

Date

/s/ ANDREW HIDALGO
Andrew Hidalgo

Director

March 24, 2017

/s/ JAMES STRIZKI
James Strizki

Director

March 24, 2017

/s/ REZAUL KARIM
Rezaul Karim

Director

March 24, 2017
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Exhibit 14.01
H/CELL ENERGY CORPORATION
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Employees, Executive Officers and Directors
Effective as of February 8, 2017
Introduction
H/Cell Energy Corporation (the “ Company ”) strives to apply high ethical, moral and legal principles in every aspect of its business conduct. This Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics is a guide for all Company personnel consisting of employees and directors.
This Code applies to all Company personnel, and is addressed to each employee and director individually. It sets forth broad ethical principles that the
Company has established for the conduct of its business, and outlines certain key legal requirements of which all Company personnel must be aware and with
which all Company personnel must comply. This Code is not intended to cover every issue that may arise, and in the course of performing their duties and
responsibilities for the Company, all personnel should act with these principles in mind and should use good judgment and common sense at all times.
This Code is designed to deter wrongdoing and promote the following:
●

Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest;

●

Avoidance of conflicts of interest, including disclosure to an appropriate Company representative of any material transaction or relationship that
reasonably could be expected to give rise to such a conflict;

●

Full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that the Company files with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“ SEC ”) and in other public communications made by the Company;

●

Compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations;

●

protection of Company assets, including corporate opportunities and confidential information;

●

Prompt internal reporting of violations of this Code to an appropriate person; and

●

Accountability for adherence to this Code.

Each director, officer and employee must act with integrity and observe the highest ethical standards of business conduct in his or her dealings with the
Company’s customers, suppliers, partners, service providers, competitors, employees and anyone else with whom he or she has contact in the course of performing
his or her job.
Company personnel who violate the standards contained in this Code will be subject to disciplinary action, possibly including termination of employment.

1.

Conflicts of Interest

A “conflict of interest” exists when an individual’s private interest (or the interest of a member of his or her family) interferes with or appears to interfere
with the interests of the Company. A conflict of interest can arise when the individual (or a member of his or her family) acts or has interests that may make it
difficult for him or her to objectively and effectively perform his or her work for the Company. Conflicts of interest also can arise when the individual, or a
member of his or her family, receives improper personal benefits because of his or her position in the Company.
Unless approved by the Board, neither you nor any member of your immediate family can acquire a financial interest in, or accept employment with, an
entity doing business with the Company if the interest or employment could conflict with your duties to the Company and the performance of such duties. For
example, it is usually a conflict of interest for Company personnel to work simultaneously for a competitor, customer or supplier. Also, you cannot work for a
competitor as an employee, consultant or board member.
Loans by the Company to, or guarantees by the Company of obligations of, employees or their family members are of special concern and could
constitute improper personal benefits to the recipients of such loans or guarantees, depending on the facts and circumstances. Loans by the Company to, or
guarantees by the Company of obligations of, any director or executive officer or their family members are expressly prohibited.
In addition, you and your immediate family members cannot accept material gifts or favors that could create the appearance that your business judgment
could be affected by the receipt of such gifts or favors. You and members of your immediate family, however, can accept gifts of nominal value from existing
sources, prospective sources or persons, firms or companies with whom the Company does or might do business.
The purpose of business entertainment and gifts in a commercial setting is to create good will and sound working relationships, not to gain unfair
advantage with customers. You cannot offer gifts or favors to any employee, or a member of the employee’s immediate family, of a competitor, supplier or
customer if the gifts or favors might place the recipient under any obligation to you or to the Company.
Conflicts of interest are prohibited as a matter of Company policy. You are required to bring any conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest to the
attention of your immediate supervisor, the Company’s chief financial officer or other appropriate person as described in Section 14. Conflicts of interest may not
always be apparent, so if you have a question regarding whether a particular situation is a conflict of interest, you should consult with your immediate supervisor or
contact the Company’s chief financial officer. Executive officers or members of the Board should consult with a member of the Audit Committee of the Board,
which consists entirely of outside, independent directors, or the Company’s legal counsel.
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2.

Corporate Opportunities

All directors, officers and employees owe a duty to the Company to advance its interests when the opportunity arises. Directors, officers and employees
are prohibited from taking for themselves personally (or for the benefit of friends or family members) opportunities that are discovered through the use of
Company assets, property, information or position. Directors, officers and employees may not use Company assets, property, information or position for personal
gain (including gain of friends or family members). In addition, no director, officer or employee may compete with the Company.
3.

Confidentiality

Company personnel must maintain the confidentiality of all confidential and nonpublic information received from the company or its customers and
suppliers, except when disclosure is authorized by an executive officer of the Company or compelled by disclosure laws or valid legal process. Confidential
information includes all information that, if disclosed, might be of use to competitors, or harmful to the Company or its customers or suppliers. It also includes
information that customers and suppliers have entrusted to the Company. For example, confidential information includes financial documents, pricing or vendor
information, corporate development materials, the cost of goods, personnel files, manuals and procedures, computer software, design documents, videos and
internal reports or memoranda. Information that the Company has made public, such as press releases, advertisements or documents filed with governmental
regulatory authorities, is not confidential information. The obligation to preserve confidential information extends beyond the term of employment with, or service
to, the Company. Furthermore, in addition to your ethical obligation to preserve the confidential nature of such sensitive information, you must abide by the terms
of your proprietary information and assignment of inventions agreement with the Company.
4.

Fair Dealing

The Company seeks to outperform its competition fairly and honestly through superior performance and not through unethical or illegal business
practices. Company personnel must deal fairly with the Company’s customers, suppliers, partners, service providers, competitors, employees and anyone else with
whom he or she has contact in the course of performing his or her job. Company personnel cannot steal proprietary information, possess trade secret information
obtained without the owner’s consent, or induce such disclosures by past or present employees of other companies. You may not take unfair advantage of anyone
through manipulation, concealment, abuse of confidential information, misrepresentation of material facts or any other intentional unfair practice. The knowing or
deliberate falsification of any documents or data in connection with service to the Company will be the basis for immediate discharge and may subject the violator
to civil and/or criminal penalties.
5.

Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets

Company personnel must endeavor to protect the Company’s assets and property and ensure their efficient use. Theft, carelessness, and waste have a
direct adverse impact on the Company’s profitability and are prohibited. All payments with Company funds require approval by an authorized officer who has
knowledge of the purpose of the payment, adequate substantiation of the identity of the payee and written contracts establishing the payment obligation. Company
personnel must report any suspected incident of fraud or theft immediately for investigation. Moreover, Company personnel must use all assets and property of the
Company only for legitimate business purposes.
The obligation of Company personnel to protect the Company’s assets extends to the Company’s intellectual property. Intellectual property includes trade
secrets, patents, patent applications, trademarks, and copyrights, as well as business, marketing and service plans, designs, databases, records, salary information
and any non-public financial data and reports. Unauthorized use or distribution of this information violates Company policy and may subject the violator to civil
and/or criminal penalties.
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6.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

Employees, officers and directors should comply, both in letter and spirit, with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in the cities, states and countries
in which the Company operates. Although not all employees, officers and directors are expected to know the details of all applicable laws, rules and regulations, it
is important to know enough to determine when to seek advice from appropriate personnel. Company personnel should contact the Company’s chief financial
officer with any questions as to the applicability of any law, rule or regulation or the appropriate manner of compliance therewith. The chief financial officer will
be responsible for conferring with legal counsel and resolving the issue.
7.

Insider Trading

No director, officer or employee may purchase or sell any Company securities while in possession of material non-public information regarding the
Company, nor may any director, officer or employee purchase or sell another company’s securities while in possession of material non-public information
regarding that company. It is against Company policies and illegal for any director, officer or employee to use material non-public information regarding the
Company or any other company to:
●

obtain profit for himself or herself; or

●

directly or indirectly “tip” others who might make an investment decision on the basis of that information.

Company personnel who have access to confidential information cannot use or share such information for stock trading purposes or for any other purpose
except the proper conduct of the Company’s business. All Company personnel are subject to the Company’s Policy on Insider Trading and Confidentiality in effect
from time to time. Insider trading is a crime and can lead to criminal and civil fines, penalties and charges against the Company and the violator.
If you have any questions regarding non-public information and the use of such information or the Company’s Policy on Insider Trading and
Confidentiality, you should contact the Company’s chief financial officer.
8.

Disclosure

The Company’s periodic reports and other documents filed with the SEC, including all financial statements and other financial information, must comply
with applicable federal securities laws and SEC rules. Each director, officer and employee who contributes in any way to the preparation or verification of the
Company’s financial statements and other financial information must ensure that the Company’s books, records and accounts are accurately maintained. Each
director, officer and employee must cooperate fully with the Company’s accounting and internal audit departments, as well as the Company’s independent public
accountants and counsel.
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Each director, officer and employee who is involved in the Company’s disclosure process must:

9.

●

be familiar with and comply with the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and its internal control over financial reporting; and

●

take all necessary steps to ensure that all filings with the SEC and all other public communications about the financial and business condition of the
Company provide full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure.

Discrimination and Harassment

The Company requires strict adherence to its policies and applicable laws regarding equal employment opportunities and discrimination in the workplace.
The Company will not tolerate illegal discrimination or harassment. Relationship with colleagues and business relationships with competitors, suppliers and
customers always must be conducted free of any discrimination, including based on race, color, creed, religion, age, sex, sexual preference, national origin, marital
status, veteran status, handicap or disability.
10.

Health and Safety

The Company strives to provide all Company personnel with a safe and healthful work environment. You share responsibility for maintaining a safe and
healthy workplace by following safety and health rules and practices and reporting accidents, injuries and unsafe equipment, practices or condition.
The Company will not tolerate violence or threatening behavior in the workplace. In addition, Company personnel are required to report to work in
condition to perform their duties, free from the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol. The Company will not tolerate the use of illegal drugs in the workplace.
11.

Record-Keeping

The Company requires honest and accurate recording and reporting of information in order to make responsible business decisions. You must document
and record accurately all of your business expenses. If you are unsure whether a particular expense is legitimate, you should ask the Company’s chief financial
officer. Executive officers or members of the Board should confer with a member of the Audit Committee or the Company’s legal counsel. Rules and guidelines
regarding business expenses are available from the Company’s account department.
All of the Company’s books, records, accounts and financial statements must be maintained in reasonable detail, must appropriately reflect the
Company’s transactions and must conform both to applicable legal requirements and to the Company’s system of internal controls. Unrecorded or “off the books”
funds or assets cannot be maintained unless permitted by applicable laws or regulations. Furthermore, all Company personnel are subject to the Company’s
document retention policy. Any questions concerning the Company’s document retention policy should be directed to the Company’s chief compliance officer.
Company personnel must avoid exaggeration, derogatory remarks, guesswork or inappropriate characterizations of people and companies in business
records and communications. This prohibition applies equally to e-mail, internal memos and formal reports.
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12.

Payments to Government Personnel or Candidates for Office

The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act prohibits giving anything of value, directly or indirectly, to officials of foreign governments or foreign political parties
or candidates to obtain or retain business. Making payments to government officials of any country is illegal.
Kickbacks, bribes, rebates or other illegal consideration are prohibited, and must never be given or accepted by any Company personnel. All Company
personnel dealing with government agencies must be aware of, and comply with, any agency rules limiting or prohibiting gifts or other favors.
The Company cannot contribute, directly or indirectly, to any political campaign or party. Company personnel cannot use expense accounts to pay for any
personal political contributions or seek any other form of reimbursement from the Company for such contributions. Of course, you are free to engage in political
activity with your own resources on your own time.
13.

Waivers of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Any waiver of this Code for executive officers or directors requires the approval of the Board and must be disclosed promptly as required by applicable
law, rules or regulations, including the SEC and various stock markets and exchanges.
14.

Compliance, Reporting and Enforcement

If you are concerned about a possible ethical or illegal situation or any violation of this Code or are not sure whether specific conduct meets applicable
Company standards, you should discuss the situation with your immediate supervisor or contact the Company’s chief financial officer. Executive officers or
members of the Company’s board of directors should discuss the situation with a member of the Audit Committee or the Company’s legal counsel.
Company personnel must report violations of laws, rules, and regulations of this Code to immediate supervisors, the Company’s chief financial officer,
the chairperson of the Audit Committee or the Company’s legal counsel. Executive officers or members of the Board must report such matters to a member of the
Audit Committee or the Company’s legal counsel.
After receiving a report of an alleged prohibited action, the Audit Committee (or the Board, in the event there is no Audit Committee) or the chief
financial officer must promptly take all appropriate actions necessary to investigate. All directors, officers and employees are expected to cooperate in any internal
investigation of misconduct.
The Company prohibits retaliation for reports of ethical misconduct made by Company personnel in good faith. If a situation requires that the identity of
the person reporting any such misconduct not be disclosed, the Company will protect his or his anonymity, to the extent legally possible.
For further information and guidance regarding the reporting of potential violations of this Code, you should review the Company’s whistleblower
procedures.
15.

Amendments

This Code may only be amended by the Board. The Company must report promptly any amendments pertaining to executive officers or senior financial
officers as required by applicable laws, rules or regulations.
###
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Exhibit 21.01
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Subsidiary Name
The Pride Group (QLD) Pty Ltd.

State/ Jurisdiction of Incorporation/Formation
Australia

Exhibit 31.01
CERTIFICATION
I, Andrew Hidalgo, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of H/Cell Energy Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonable
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls
over financial reporting.

Date: March 24, 2017
/s/ ANDREW HIDALGO
Andrew Hidalgo
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.02
CERTIFICATION
I, Matthew Hidalgo, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of H/Cell Energy Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonable
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls
over financial reporting.

Date: March 24, 2017
/s/ MATTHEW HIDALGO
Matthew Hidalgo
Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.01
CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Andrew Hidalgo, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual
Report of H/Cell Energy Corporation on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial
condition and results of operations of H/Cell Energy Corporation.

Date: March 24, 2017

By:
/s/ ANDREW HIDALGO
Name: Andrew Hidalgo
Title: Chief Executive Officer

I, Matthew Hidalgo, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual
Report of H/Cell Energy Corporation on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial
condition and results of operations of H/Cell Energy Corporation.

Date: March 24, 2017

By:
/s/ MATTHEW HIDALGO
Name: Matthew Hidalgo
Title: Chief Financial Officer

